OF LEXINGTON &
RICHLAND COUNTIES

)

*Amended* Agenda
Board of Trustees
Regular Meeting
Location: Center for Advanced Technical Studies
Video Livestream: https://lexrich5.rev.vbrick.com/#/webcasts/boardmeeting

April 25, 2022

1. Call to order at 6:00 p.m.
2. Approval of the agenda
3. Enter Executive Session to consider the following:

a. Selected employment items (Exhibit A) (Action)

b. Selected employment items (Exhibit B) (Information Only)

c. Contractual Matter: Land Survey at Irmo High School (Exhibit C)

d. Legal advice and update regarding litigation involving construction defects at Chapin

High School
4. Call to order at 7:00 p.m.
5. Welcoming remarks —Jan Hammond, Board Chair
6. Invocation — Ken Loveless, Board of Trustees
7. Pledge of Allegiance — Ken Loveless, Board of Trustees
8. School Board Spotlight
9. Superintendent’s Report

a. Vision for new Irmo High School Wing
b. Discussion of Potential Bond Referendum to Finance the Poor and Fair-Rated
Facilities in the 2019 M.B. Kahn Report (Exhibit M)
10. Approval of the minutes of the March 28, 2022 board meeting

11. Public Participation*

ACTION AGENDA

12. Action as Necessary or Appropriate on Matters Discussed in Executive Session

13. Approval of Textbook Adoptions — K-8 Science (Exhibit D)


https://lexrich5.rev.vbrick.com/#/webcasts/boardmeeting

14. Discussion and Approval of Strategic Plan Amendment

15. Discussion and Suspension of Board Policy ADD “Face Coverings” (Exhibit E) and Updates to
“Face Covering Resolution” (Exhibit F)

DISCUSSION AGENDA

16. Discussion Regarding Contingency Requests for Capital Funds and ESSER Funds (Exhibit G)
17. Legislative Update on New State Funding Model

18. Discussion and First Reading of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy BCA “Board Member Code of
Ethics” (Exhibit H)

19. Discussion and First Reading of Proposed New Board Policy FGG “Facility Construction Project
Administration” (Exhibit 1)

20. Discussion and First Reading of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy FEC “Selection of
Professionals in Facilities Construction” (Exhibit J)

21. Discussion and First Reading of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy BDG “School Attorney/Legal
Services” (Exhibit K)

22. Discussion of Proposed Revisions to Administrative Rule BDG-R “School Attorney/Legal Services”
(Exhibit L)

23. Adjourn

INFORMATION AGENDA

24. The next regular scheduled board meeting will be May 9, 2022, at the Center for Advanced
Technical Studies.

* The Board welcomes and encourages public participation. However, the privilege of addressing the
Board does not include the ability to make personal attacks on any Board Member, district employee, or
other member of the public. We respectfully ask that you adhere to the procedures and the decorum
provided in board policy BEDH “Public Participation at Meetings”. Your comments should be limited to
three minutes. Questions asked during public participation will be handled in accordance with board
policy BEDH.



Minutes/March 28, 2022

The Board of Trustees of School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties met at the
Center for Advanced Technical Studies with the following members present:

Mrs. Rebecca Blackburn Hines
Mrs. Nikki Gardner, Secretary
Mrs. Jan Hammond, Chair

Mr. Matt Hogan

Mrs. Catherine Huddle

Mr. Ken Loveless, Vice Chair
Mrs. Tifani Moore

Dr. Akil Ross, Superintendent

The following staff were in attendance:

Mr. Todd Bedenbaugh, Executive Director of Operations

Dr. Michael Harris, Chief Student Services and Planning Officer
Mrs. Anna Miller, Chief of Academics and Administration

Mrs. Marty Rawls, Chief Finance Officer

Mrs. Amanda Taylor, Director of Communications

Dr. Tamara Turner, Chief Human Resources Officer

A livestream video link was provided to the public as a viewing option for the March 28, 2022,
board meeting.

Chair Hammond called the meeting to order and gave welcoming remarks.
Cathy Huddle, Board of Trustees, gave the Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.
The Board conducted the School Board Spotlight.

During the Superintendent’s Report, Dr. Corey Willimon and Dr. Robin Cox presented a Literacy
Update; Mrs. Marty Rawls presented a Monthly Financials Report (Exhibit G), and an update on
the FY2023 State Funding Formula (Exhibit H).

During the public participation Dr. Barb Waldman spoke about a proposed new Board Policy DD
“Funding Proposals, Grants, and Special Projects” (Exhibit K).

The Board presented for discussion:
e Discussion of Third-Party Inspection at Piney Woods Elementary
o Discussion on Guiding Principles on School Facilities (Exhibit N)
o Discussion regarding Face Covering Resolution (Exhibit O)
» Discussion and First Reading of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy BCA “Board
Member Code of Ethics” (Exhibit P) — The Board of Trustees will discuss this policy at the
April 25, 2022 board meeting.

A = Absent

www.lexrich5.org
1020 Dutch Fork Road « Irmo, South Carolina 29063 - (803) 476-8000

AB = Abstain

“Pursuing Excellence for Tomorrow's Challenges” B =Remuse



+ Discussion and First Reading of Proposed new Board Policy FGG "Facility Construction
Project Administration” (Exhibit Q)

+ Discussion and First Reading of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy FEC "Selection of
Professionals in Facilities Construction” (Exhibit R) — The Board of Trustees will discuss
this policy at the April 25, 202 board meeting.

Award for Banking Services was presented as information (Exhibit S).

A= Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No

X =Yes

R =Recuse



’

Record of Voting

R = Recuse

B|G|H|H|H LM
L{A|lA|JO|U|O|O
A|lR|M|G|D|V]|O
C|D|IM|A|D|E|R
K| N]|]O]|N L L | E
SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE B|E | N E| E
OF U[R|D S
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES R S
N
Meeting of March 28, 2022
H
[
N
E
S
1. M. Loveless S, Huddle X | X1 X[ X X1 XX
Approve the agenda.
2. M. Loveless S. Huddle X[ X1 X | X | XX | X
| make the motion to enter executive session to consider the
following: a.) Selected employment items (Exhibit A} (Action);
b.) 2022-2023 Reappointments (Exhibit B) (Action); ¢.)
Selected employment items {Exhibit C) {Information Only};
d.} Legal advice regarding a construction contract; e.)
Contractual matter regarding Dutch Fork Elementary School
and Irmo High School (Exhibit D); f.) Receipt of legal advice
regarding latent roof defects at Chapin High School; g.)
Legal advice regarding the sale of property adjacent to Irmo
High School (Exhibit E); h.} Contractual matter regarding
artificial turf at high schools (Exhibit F).
3. M., Huddle S. Hogan X | X | X[ X | X | X | A
| move that we approve the minutes of the March 14, 2022
board meeting.
4. M. Loveless S. Huddle X | X1 X | X | X | X[ X
I make the motion that we approve the selected employment
items per Exhibit A for action.
A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No
X=Yes




SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE
OF
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

Meeting of March 28, 2022

omZ—T ZAACODARO>Prm

AMZOAD2 6

OZ0=2=E>» I

ZreQ0xIT

mrOoOCI
nmomrm<Or

muOO=E

M. Loveless S. Gardner

| make the motion that we approve the 2022-2023
Reappointments (Exhibit B) for action.

x

M. Gardner S. Huddle

I move that we direct the District to utilize 2022-2023 Capital
Funds for solar panels at Dutch Fork Elementary and Irmo
High School and complete the amendment to use ESSER
funding for the roof at CrossRoads Gym (Exhibit D).

M. Hogan S. Huddle

| move that we approve the change-order request for the
synthetic turf at Chapin High Scheol, irmo High School and
Dutch Fork High School to the 50-ounce Predator Turf
System with the 10-year warranty that Sprinturf, LLC is
Offering (Exhibit F).

M. Loveless S. Huddle

i move that we approve and award the contract for Financial
and Procurement Audit Services to Jaramillo Accounting
Group {(JAG) for the fiscal years 2022, 2023, 2024 contingent
upon the following (Exhibit 1):

JAG maintaining approval to do business in South Carclina
with South Carolina L.abor Licensing and Regulation.

JAG being on the approved auditor list with the South
Carolina State Auditor’s Office if Proviso 1.3 in the current
version is adopted by the General Assembly.

JAG being approved by the SFAA — Division of Procurement
Services.

A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No
X=Yes

R =Recuse




B|G|H|H]|H L | M
LIA|JAJO!U|]O|O
A|lRIM|G|D|V]O
C|D|IM|A[D|EIR
K|N]|]O]|N L L | E
SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE B|E|N E | E
OF U| R | D S
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES R S
N
Meeting of March 28, 2022
H
I
N
E
S
9. M. Loveless S, Huddle X XX X | X1 X X
| move that we approve Second and Final Reading of the
propesed Spring Bond Issuance Resolution for 2022 8%
bond financing as show in Exhibit J except that we change
the true interest cost to 3% from 2.5%.
10. M. Gardner S. Huddle X[ XTI X | X X | X | X
I would like to make a motion that we approve for Second and
Final Reading the proposed new Board Policy DD “Funding
proposals, Grants, and Special Projects” as seen in Exhibit K.
1. M. Gardner S. Huddle X I XX | X | X1 XX
| move that we approve for Second and Final Reading the
proposed new Board Policy BC “Board Member Conduct and
Commitment” as seen in Exhibit L.
12. M. Gardner S.  Huddle X1 XX | X | X ]| XiX
I would like to make a motion that we approve for Second
and Final Reading of proposed new Board Policy BCB
‘Board Member Conflict of Interest” as seen in Exhibit M.
A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No
X=Yes

R =Recuse




SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE
OF
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

Meeting of March 28, 2022

OMZ—I ZTCOXO>P»PrCW

AMZ030>» @

OZOE=Er>rT

Z>»OH0I

mrogocCT
OOMrM<Or

maonoo=

13.

M. Huddle S. Loveless

I move that in pursuant to the “Construction Close-Out
Piney Woods Elementary School, Chapin, SC” report (5
items, 17 pages including Appendix) dated March 28, 2022
prepared by Mead and Hunt for Piney Woods Elementary
School, that the superintendent requires the architect to
formally nctify the Construction Manager at-risk that repairs
charged to his account have been made as listed in the
above report prior to Final Acceptance of the project. ltis
the intent of the Board that all construction be the new first-
class quality with specified conforming materials and
acceptable workmanship prior to acceptance. Final
Acceptance shall be confingent upon a final report by Mead
and Hunt.

>

14.

M. Blackburn Hines S. Moore

| make the motion that we defer items 21-23 to the next
board meeting.
M. Huddle S. Moore

| would like to amend the motion that we defer only items 21
and 23 to the next board meeting

Vote on original motion

5. M. Loveless

S. Blackburn Hines

| moved that we defer to next meeting Board Policy FGG
“Facility Construction Project Administration” to receive
attorney's information to incorporate in the proposed revisions
to policy.

A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No
X=Yes

R =Recuse




B | G| H H H L | M
LIA|JA|[OC|[U|O]|O
AR M|G|DiIV)|O
C|b|lM|A|D{EI{R
K| N|O|NJLL E
SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE B E N E E
OF U| R |D S
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES R S
N
Meeting of March 28, 2022
H
I
N
E
8
16. M. Hogan S. Gardner X | X | X | X | X | X | X
Adjourn at 10:05 p.m.
A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No
X=Yes

R =Recuse




7/
Attachmant I8_Included with
the minutes of the __ :‘3 -éz—w-?—’-‘

at the est of Board member
[—2
March 28,2022 pursuant to South Carolina Code
Ann, Section 30-4-90(a)(4)
and Board Policy BEDG. The Board majority
did not approve, disanprove, or otherwise
act upon the contents of this attachment.

Madame Chair,
I request a point of personal privilege.

In December of 2019 | was approached by a citizen concerned about concrete construction activities in
the dead of night at Piney Woods Elementary School (then Elementary School # 13). She spoke in Public
Participation. Because of my background in construction, | inquired and followed Board Policy BEDH
with the district superintendent raising questions asked by the citizen. One would believe that my
interest would have been met with encouragement.

Far be that from the case.

| met with Dan Neal and the district superintendent on January 9,2020 in the District Office about the
citizen’s concerns.

What followed then was silence.

Not receiving answers, | then asked the concrete supplier on this portion of the project for information
about the material, specifically delivery tickets. To my great surprise | found curb and gutter and other
concrete materials not tested as they were being installed. Further the materials were installed in non-
conforming manners so as the require them to be rejected had they been tested. | wrote the district
superintendent in detailed fashion as required in Board Policy BEDGA with my concerns on March
24,2020.

| visited the jobsite once when the entire board was invited by the administration during June 2020 and
was never there again until the ribbon cutting in 2021.

My inquiries were based upon observations from off the jobsite made mostly driving back and forth to
work.

Without prior knowledge and caught by surprise, | was put on trial by the board majority on September
14,2020. District hired lawyers and 11 engineers and architects participated. Ed White was allowed by
the board chair to act as mock prosecutor.

I was put on trial a second time on September 28,2020.

In the September 28 board meeting, Dan Neal stated in his letter terminating his services as Consultant
to the Superintendent:

“l find today that | spend more time answering trivial questions by those who want to find fault
and it detracts from the project. When | was a Board member, | understood that:

I had no authority as an individual

| chose not to visit construction projects unless | was invited by the administration and
that was rare

| understood that it was not my job to supervise construction, but rather to support
those who do.”



Well, Mr. Neal, | did not do those things either. | recused myself from participation.

But | did ask that a constituent’s questions be answered and tonight | feel somewhat vindicated by the
fact that non-conforming work has been found on the very subject about which I tried in vain to inform.



is included with

20

Attachment

L E- 2L 33—

member

the minutes of the

meeting, at the

of

£y
NI Y
b § 5 A RESOLUTION
g LS
e ?é df_; AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF NOT EXCEEDING
g:g .§u5 $49,000,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2022, OR
§§8 33 SUCH OTHER APPROPRIATE SERIES DESIGNATION, OF SCHOOL
£ ‘{v A § DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON COUNTY AND RICHLAND
’*ﬁ ] § e 'é COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA; FIXING THE FORM AND DETAILS
§ 8 E %g OF THE BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE SUPERINTENDENT TO
£ gg § DETERMINE CERTAIN MATTERS RELATING TO THE BONDS;
N 3 £S5  PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS AND THE
35228  DISPOSITION OF THE PROCEEDS THEREOF; AND OTHER

MATTERS RELATING THERETO.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF
LEXINGTON COUNTY AND RICHLAND COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Findings and Determinations. The Board of Trustees (the “Board”), as the governing
body of School District No. 5 of Lexington County and Richland County, South Carolina (the “School
District”), hereby finds and determines:

(a) The School District was organized by action of the Lexington County Board of Education
in 1951 and the Richland County Board of Education in 1952. The School District is also known as
Richland-Lexington School District No. 5. The Board is the governing body of the School District.

(b) Article X, Section 15 of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 1895, as amended
(the “Constitution”), provides that after November 30, 1982, the governing body of any school district may
incur general obligation debt in an amount not exceeding eight percent of the assessed value of all taxable
property of such school district upon such terms and conditions as the General Assembly may prescribe.
Such Article further provides that if general obligation debt is authorized by a majority vote of the qualified
electors of the school district voting in a referendum authorized by law, there shall be no conditions or
restrictions limiting the incurring of such indebtedness except as specified in such Article.

(c) Title 59, Chapter 71, Article 1, Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the
“School Bond Act”), provides that the board of trustees of any school district may issue general obligation
bonds of such school district for the purpose of defraying the cost of capital improvements to any amount
not exceeding the constitutional debt limitation applicable to such school district. The School Bond Act
requires the county board of education wherein the School District is located, if there is such, to approve the
issuance of such bonds.

(d) Title 11, Chapter 27, Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (“Title 11,
Chapter 27”), provides that if an election be prescribed by the provisions of the School Bond Act but is not
required by the provisions of Article X of the Constitution, then in every such instance, no election need be
held and the remaining provisions of the School Bond Act shall constitute a full and complete authorization
to issue bonds in accordance with such remaining provisions. Title 11, Chapter 27 further provides that any
school district of the state may issue bonds in fully-registered form.

(e) The assessed value of all taxable property in the School District, as of June 30, 2021, is
$586,383,014. Eight (8%) percent of such sum is $46,910,641. The School District does not have any
outstanding general obligation debt subject to the limitation imposed by Article X, Section 15(6) of the
Constitution. Thus, the School District may incur $46,910,641 of general obligation debt within its

1

47463786 v5



applicable constitutional debt limitation. The final par amount of the Bonds will not exceed the School
District’s constitutional debt limit.

® Pursuant to a Resolution adopted by the Board on August 13, 2012, the Board adopted
Written Procedures related to Tax-Exempt Debit.

(2) It is now in the best interest of the School District for the Board to provide for the
issuance and sale of general obligation bonds of the School District pursuant to the Constitution and laws
of the State of South Carolina (the “State™) in the principal amount of not exceeding $49,000,000, the
proceeds of which will be used for the purposes of funding annual capital maintenance projects and a
portion of the improvements planned at Irmo High School (the “Projects™), paying the costs of issuance
of the Bonds (hereinafter defined) and such other lawful purposes as the Board may determine.

Section 2. Authorizations and Details of Bonds. Pursuant to the aforesaid provisions of the
Constitution and laws of the State there is hereby authorized to be issued general obligation bonds of the
School District in the amount of not exceeding $49,000,000 to obtain funds for any one or more of the
purposes mentioned in Section 1(g) above, including any financial and legal fees relating thereto and other
incidental costs of issuing the Bonds. The Bonds shall be designated “$49,000,000 (or such lesser amount
issued) General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022 (or such other appropriate series designation) of School
District No. 5 of Lexington County and Richland County, South Carolina” (the “Bonds™).

The Bonds shall be issued as fully-registered bonds; shall be dated as of their date of delivery; shall
be in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof not exceeding the principal amount of the
Bonds maturing in each year; shall be numbered from R-1 upward; shall bear interest at such times as
hereafter designated by the Superintendent at such rate or rates as may be determined at the time of the sale
thereof; and shall mature serially in successive annual installments as determined by the Superintendent.

Both the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency of the
United States of America which is, at the time of payment, legal tender for public and private debts. U.S.
Bank Trust Company, National Association shall serve as registrar and paying agent (the
“Registrar/Paying Agent”) for the Bonds.

Section 3. Delegation of Authority to Determine Certain Matters Relating to the Bonds, The Board
hereby delegates to the Superintendent the authority to determine (a) the par amount of the Bonds; (b) the

maturity dates of the Bonds and the respective principal amounts maturing on such dates; (c) the interest
payment dates of the Bonds; (d) redemption provisions, if any, for the Bonds; and (e) the date, time and
manner of sale of the Bonds. At the time of the sale, the School District reserves the right, in its sole
discretion, either to decrease or increase the principal amount of the Bonds maturing in any year (all
calculations to be rounded to the nearest $5,000), provided that any such decrease or increase shall not
exceed 15% of the par amount of the Bonds maturing in any year or such other percentage as agreed to
by the School District and the winning bidder.

The Board hereby delegates to the Superintendent the authority to receive bids on behalf of the
Board and the authority to award the sale of the Bonds to the lowest bidder therefor in accordance with the
terms of the Official Notice of Sale for the Bonds, provided the true interest cost of the Bonds does not
exceed 3.0%. After the sale of the Bonds , the Superintendent shall submit a written report to the Board
setting forth the results of the sale of the Bonds,

47463786 v5



In addition to the authority delegated above, the Superintendent has the authority, upon
recommendation from the School District’s Financial Advisor and Bond Counsel, to sell the Bonds through
a bank placement if it is determined to be in the best interest of the School District.

. Section 4. Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds. The School District shall cause books
(herein referred to as the “registry books™) to be kept at the offices of the Registrar/Paying Agent, for the
registration and transfer of the Bonds. Upon presentation at its office for such purpose the Registrar/Paying
Agent shall register or transfer, or cause to be registered or transferred, on such registry books, the Bonds
under such reasonable regulations as the Registrar/Paying Agent may prescribe.

Each Bond shall be transferable only upon the registry books of the School District, which shall be
kept for such purpose at the principal office of the Registrar/Paying Agent, by the registered owner thereof
in person or by his duly authorized attorney upon surrender thercof together with a written instrument of
transfer satisfactory to the Registrar/Paying Agent duly executed by the registered owner or his or her duly
authorized attorney. Upon the transfer of any such Bond, the Registrar/Paying Agent on behalf of the
School District shall issue in the name of the transferee a new fully-registered Bond of the same principal
amount, interest rate and maturity as the surrendered Bond. Any Bond surrendered in exchange for a new
registered Bond pursuant to this Section shall be canceled by the Registrar/Paying Agent.

The School District and the Registrar/Paying Agent may deem or treat the person in whose name
any fully-registered Bond shall be registered upon the registry books as the absolute owner of such Bond,
whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment of the principal of and
interest on such Bond and for all other purposes and all such payments so made to any such registered
owner or upon his order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to
the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the School District nor the Registrar/Paying Agent shall
be affected by any notice to the contrary. In all cases in which the privilege of transferring Bonds is
exercised, the School District shall execute and the Registrar/Paying Agent shall authenticate and deliver
Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution. Neither the School District nor the
Registrar/Paying Agent shall be obliged to make any such transfer of Bonds during the fifteen (15) days
preceding an interest payment date on such Bonds.

Section 5. Record Date. The School District hereby establishes a record date for the payment of
interest or for the giving of notice of any proposed redemption of Bonds, and such record date shall be the
fifteenth (15th) day (whether or not a business day) preceding an interest payment date on such Bond or, in
the case of any proposed redemption of Bonds, such record date shall be the fifteenth (15th) day (whether or
not a business day) prior to the mailing of notice of redemption of Bonds.

Section 6. Mutilation, Loss, Theft or Destruction of Bonds. In case any Bond shall at any time
become mutilated in whole or in part, or be lost, stolen or destroyed, or be so defaced as to impair the value
thereof to the owner, the School District shall execute and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver at the
principal office of the Registrar, or send by registered mail to the owner thereof at his request, risk and
expense a new Bond of the same series, interest rate and maturity and of like tenor and effect in exchange or
substitution for and upon the surrender for cancellation of such defaced, mutilated or partly destroyed Bond,
or in lieu of or in substitution for such lost, stolen or destroyed Bond. In any such event the applicant for the
issuance of a substitute Bond shall furnish the School District and the Registrar evidence or proof
satisfactory to the School District and the Registrar of the loss, destruction, mutilation, defacement or theft
of the original Bond, and of the ownership thereof, and also such security and indemnity as may be required
by the laws of the State or such greater amount as may be required by the School District and the Registrar.
Any duplicate Bond issued under the provisions of this Section in exchange and substitution for any
defaced, mutilated or partly destroyed Bond or in substitution for any allegedly lost, stolen or wholly-

3

47463786 v3



destroyed Bond shall be entitled to the identical benefits under this Resolution as was the original Bond in
lieu of which such duplicate Bond is issued, and shall be entitled to equal and proportionate benefits with all
the other Bonds of the same series issued herennder.

All expenses necessary for the providing of any duplicate Bond shall be borne by the applicant
therefor.

Section 7. Execution of Bonds. The Bonds shall be executed in the name of the School District
with the manual or facsimile signature of the Chair of the Board attested by the manual or facsimile
signature of the Secretary of the Board under the seal of the School District which shall be impressed,
imprinted or reproduced thereon. The Bonds shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose unless
there shall have been endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication. Each Bond shall bear a certificate of
authentication manually executed by the Registrar/Paying Agent in substantially the form set forth herein.

Section 8. Form of Bonds. The Bonds shall be in substantially the form set forth as Appendix A
attached hereto.

Section 9. Eligible Securities. The Bonds initially issued (the “Initial Bonds™) will be eligible
securities for the purposes of the book-entry system of transfer maintained by The Depository Trust
Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), and transfers of beneficial ownership of the Initial Bonds shall
be made only through DTC and its participants in accordance with rules specified by DT'C. Such beneficial
ownership must be of $5,000 principal amount of Bonds of the same maturity or any integral multiple of
$5,000.

The Initial Bonds shall be issued in fully-registered form, one Bond for each of the maturities of the
Bonds, in the name of Cede & Co., as the nominee of DTC. When any principal of or interest on the Initial
Bonds becomes due, the School District shall transmit to DTC an amount equal to such installment of
principal and interest. DTC shall remit such payments to the beneficial owners of the Bonds or their
nominees in accordance with its rules and regulations.

Notices of redemption of the Initial Bonds or any portion thereof shall be sent to DTC in
accordance with the provisions of this Resolution.

If (a) DTC determines not to continue to act as securities depository for the Bonds, or (b) the School
District has advised DTC of its determination that DTC is incapable of discharging its duties, the School
District shall attempt to retain another qualified securities depository to replace DTC. Upon receipt by the
School District of the Initial Bonds together with an assignment duly executed by DTC, the School District
shall execute and deliver to the successor securities depository Bonds of the same principal amount, interest
rate and maturity registered in the name of such successor.

If the School District is unable to retain a qualified successor to DTC or the School District has
determined that it is in its best interest not to continue the book-entry system of transfer or that interests of
the beneficial owners of the Bonds might be adversely affected if the book-entry system of transfer is
continued (the School District undertakes no obligation to make any investigation to determine the
occurrence of any events that would permit it to make any such determination), and has made provision to
so notify beneficial owners of the Bonds by mailing an appropriate notice to DTC, upon receipt by the
School District of the Initial Bonds together with an assignment duly executed by DTC, the School District
shall execute, authenticate and deliver to the DTC participants Bonds in fully-registered form, in
substantially the form set forth in Section 8 of this Resolution in the denominations of any integral multiple
of $5,000.

47463786 v5



Section 10. Security for the Bonds. The full faith, credit, resources and taxing power of the School
District are hereby irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as they
respectively mature and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor. There shall be levied
annually by the Auditors of Lexington County and Richland County (the “Auditors™) and collected by the
Treasurers of Lexington County and Richland County (the “Treasurers™) in the same manner as county
taxes are levied and collected, a tax, without limit, on all taxable property in the School District sufficient to
pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as they respectively mature and to create such sinking fund as
may be necessary therefor.

The Auditors and Treasurers shall be notified as to the delivery of and payment for the Bonds and
are hereby directed to levy and collect, respectively, on all taxable property in the School District, a tax,
without limit, on all taxable property in the School District sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on
the Bonds as they respectively mature and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor.

Section 11. Defeasance. The obligations of the School District under this Resolution and the
pledges, covenants and agreements of the School District herein made or provided for, shall be fully
discharged and satisfied as to any portion of the Bonds, and such Bond or Bonds shall no longer be deemed
to be outstanding hereunder when:

(a) such Bond or Bonds shall have been purchased by the School District and surrendered to
the School District for cancellation or otherwise surrendered to the School District or the Paying Agent and
is canceled or subject to cancellation by the School District or the Paying Agent; or

) payment of the principal of and interest on such Bonds either (i) shall have been made or
caused to be made in accordance with the terms thereof, or (ii) shall have been provided for by irrevocably
depositing with a corporate frustee in trust and irrevocably set aside exclusively for such payment (1)
moneys sufficient to make such payment or (2) Government Obligations (hereinafter defined) maturing as to
principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will ensure the availability of sufficient moneys
to make such payment and all necessary and proper fees, compensation and expenses of the corporate
trustee. At such time as the Bonds shall no longer be deemed to be outstanding hereunder, such Bonds shall
cease to draw interest from the due date thereof and, except for the purposes of any such payment from such
moneys or Government Obligations as set forth in (ii) above, shall no longer be secured by or entitled to the
benefits of this Resolution.

“Government Obligations” shall mean any of the following:

(i) direct obligations of the United States of America or agencies thereof or
obligations, the payment of principal or interest on which, in the opinion of the Attorney
General of the United States, is fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the United
States of America; and

(i} non-callable, U.S. Treasury Securities - State and Local Government
Series (SLGS).

(©) Such Bond or Bonds shall be defeased as provided in Section 11-14-110 of the S.C. Code
as such may be amended from time to time.

47463785 v5



Section 12. Exemption from State Taxes. Both the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be
exempt, in accordance with the provisions of Section 12-2-50 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976,
as amended, from all State, county, municipal, school district and all other taxes or assessments, except
estate or other transfer taxes, direct or indirect, general or special, whether imposed for the purpose of
general revenue or otherwise.

Section 13. Sale of Bonds: Form of Notice of Sale. The Bonds shall be sold at public sale. A
Notice of Sale shall be distributed to prospective bidders and a summary of such Notice of Sale shall be
published in a newspaper having general circulation in the State, not less than seven (7) days prior to the
date set for such sale. The Notice of Sale shall be in substantially the form set forth as Appendix B attached
hereto.

Section 14. Preliminary and Official Statement. The Board hereby authorizes and directs the
Superintendent to prepare, or cause to be prepared, a Preliminary Official Statement to be distributed to
prospective purchasers of the Bonds together with the Notice of Sale. The Board authorizes the
Superintendent to designate the Preliminary Official Statement as “near final” for purposes of Rule 15¢2-12
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Rule”). The Superintendent is further
authorized to see to the completion of the final form of the Official Statement upon the sale of the Bonds so
that it may be provided to the purchaser of the Bonds.

Section 15. Filings with Central Repository. In compliance with Section 11-1-85 of the S.C. Code,
if the Bonds are issued as tax-exempt, the School District covenants that it will file or cause to be filed with
a central repository for further availability in the secondary bond market when requested: (a) a copy of the
annual audit of the School District within thirty (30) days of the School District’s receipt thereof; and (b)
within thirty (30) days of the occurrence thereof, relevant information of an event which, in the opinion of
the School District, adversely affects more than five percent (5%) of the School District’s revenue or its tax
base.

Section 16. Continuing Disclosure. In compliance with the Rule, if the Bonds are publicly-traded,
the School District covenants and agrees for the benefit of the holders from time to time of the Bonds to
execute and deliver prior to closing, and to thereafter comply with the terms of, a Continuing Disclosure
Certificate in substantially the form appearing as Appendix C to this Resolution. In the event of a failure of
the School District to comply with any of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, an event
of default under this Resolution shall not be deemed to have occurred. In such event, the sole remedy of any
bondholder or beneficial owner shall be an action to compel performance by the School District.

Section 17. Deposit and Use of Proceeds. The proceeds shall be deposited with the Lexington
County Treasurer in a special fund to the credit of the School District and shall be applied solely to the
purposes for which the Bonds have been issued, including payment of costs of issuance.

Section 18. Reimbursement of Certain Expenditures. The Board hereby declares that this
Resolution shall constitute its declaration of official intent pursuant to Regulation § 1.150-2 to reimburse the
School District from the proceeds of the Bonds for expenditures with respect to the Projects (the
“Expenditures”). The School District anticipates incurring Expenditures with respect to the Projects prior to
the issuance by the School District of the Bonds for such purposes. To be eligible for reimbursement of the
Expenditures, the payment date of such Expenditures must be subsequent to the date occurring sixty (60)
days prior to the adoption of this resolution and the reimbursement allocation must be made not later than
18 months after the later of (a) the date on which the Expenditures were paid, or (b) the date the Projects
was placed in service, but in no event more than three (3) years after the original Expenditures. The
Expenditures are incurred solely to acquire, construct or rehabilitate property having a reasonably expected

6

47463786 v5



economic life of at least one (1) year. The source of funds for the Expenditures with respect to the Projects
will be the School District’s general reserve funds or other legally-available funds.

Section 19. Tax Covenants. The School District hereby covenants and agrees with the holders of
the Bonds that it will not take any action which will, or fail to take any action which failure will, cause
interest on the Bonds to become includable in the gross income of the bondholders for federal income tax
purposes pursuant to the provisions of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), and
regulations promulgated thereunder in effect on the date of original isswance of the Bonds. The School
District further covenants and agrees with the holders of the Bonds that no use of the proceeds of the Bonds
shall be made which, if such use had been reasonably expected on the date of issue of the Bonds would have
caused the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds,” as defined in Section 148 of the Code, and to that end the School
District hereby shall:

(a) comply with the applicable provisions of Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code
and any regulations promulgated thereunder so long as the Bonds are outstanding;

(b) establish such funds, make such calculations and pay such amounts, in the manner and at
the times required in order to comply with the requirements of the Code relating to required rebates of
certain amounts to the United States; and

©) make such reports of such information at the time and places required by the Code.
Section 20. Miscellaneous. The Board hereby authorizes the Chair of the Board, the Secretary of

the Board, the Superintendent and the Chief Financial Officer (or the equivalent thereto) to execute such
documents and instruments as may be necessary to effect the issuance of the Bonds.

The Board hereby authorizes the engagement of Burr & Forman LLP as Bond Counsel in regard to
the Bonds, The Superintendent is authorized to execute such contracts, documents or engagement letters as
may be necessary and appropriate to effectuate said engagement.

All rules, regulations, resolutions and parts thereof, procedural or otherwise, in conflict herewith or
the proceedings authorizing the issuance of the Bonds are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed
and this Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its adoption.

Adopted this day of , 2022.

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON
COUNTY AND RICHLAND COUNTY,
SOUTH CAROLINA

Chair, Board of Trustees
(SEAL)

ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Trustees

47463786 v5



Appendix A
FORM OF BOND

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON COUNTY AND RICHLAND COUNTY
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2022

No. R-
INTEREST MATURITY ORIGINAL
RATE DATE ISSUE DATE CUSIP
%
REGISTERED HOLDER:
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: DOLLARS

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that School District No. 5 of Lexington County and
Richland County, South Carolina (the “School District™), is justly indebted and, for value received, hereby
promises to pay to the registered holder named above, or registered assigns, the principal amount shown
above on the maturity date shown above, upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at the principal
office of U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association in St. Paul, Minnesota (the “Paying Agent™), and
to pay interest on such principal sum from the date hereof at the interest rate per annum shown above until
this Bond matures. Interest on this Bond is payable 1, and semiannually thereafter on

1 and 1 of each year, until this Bond matures, and shall be payable by
electronic transfer or check or draft mailed to the person in whose name this Bond is registered on the
registration books of the School District maintained by the registrar, presently U.S. Bank Trust Company,
National Association in St. Paul, Minnesota (the “Registrar™), at the close of business on the fifteenth (15th)
day of the calendar month preceding each semiannual interest payment date. The principal and interest on
this Bond are payable in any coin or currency of the United States of America which is, at the time of
payment, legal tender for public and private debts; provided, however, that interest on this fully-registered
Bond shall be paid by check or draft as set forth above.

This Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Resolution of the School District
authorizing the Bonds, nor become valid or obligatory for any purpose, until the Certificate of
Authentication hereon shall have been duly executed by the Registrar.

For the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond as it respectively matures and for the
creation of such sinking fund as may be necessary to provide for the prompt payment thereof, the full faith,
credit, resources and taxing power of the School District are hereby irrevocably pledged, and there shall be
levied annually by the Auditors of Lexington County and Richland County and collected by the Treasurers
of Lexington County and Richland County, in the same manner as county taxes are levied and collected, a
tax, without limit, on all taxable property in the School District sufficient to pay the principal of and interest
on this Bond as it respectively matures and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary to provide
therefor.

A-l
47463786 v5



The Bonds are being issued by means of a book-entry system with no physical distribution of bond
certificates to be made except as provided in the Resolution. One bond certificate with respect to each date
on which the Bonds are stated to mature, registered in the name of the securities depository nominee, is
being issued and required to be deposited with the securities depository and immobilized in its custody. The
book-entry system will evidence positions held in the Bonds by the securities depository’s participants,
beneficial ownership of the Bonds in the principal amount of any integral multiple of $5,000 being
evidenced in the records of such participants. Transfers of ownership shall be effected on the records of the
securities depository and its participants pursuant to rules and procedures established by the securities
depository and its participants. The School District and the Registrar/Paying Agent will recognize the
securities depository nominee, while the registered owner of this bond, as the owner of this bond for all
purposes, including payments of principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on this bond,
notices and voting. Transfer of principal and interest payments to participants of the securities depository
will be the responsibility of the securities depository, and transfer of principal, redemption premium, if any,
and interest payments to beneficial owners of the Bonds by participants of the securities depository will be
the responsibility of such participants and other nominees of such beneficial owners. The School District
will not be responsible or liable for such transfers of payments or for maintaining, supervision or reviewing
the records maintained by the securities depository, the securities depository nominee, its participants or
persons acting through such participants, While the securities depository nominee is the owner of this bond,
notwithstanding, the provision hereinabove contained, payments of principal of, redemption premium, if
any, and interest on this bond shall be made in accordance with existing arrangements between the
Registrar/Paying Agent or its successors under the Resolution and the securities depository.

This Bond is one of a series of Bonds of like date of original issue, tenor and effect, except as to
number, date of maturity, denomination and rate of interest, aggregating and no/100
Dollars ($ ), issued pursuant to and in accordance with Article X, Section 15 of the
Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 1895, as amended (the “Constitution™); Title 59, Chapter 71,
Article 1, Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended; Title 11, Chapter 27, Code of Laws of South
Carolina 1976, as amended; and a Resolution duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of the School District.

The Bonds will not be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities.

This Bond is transferable as provided in the Resolution, only upon the books of the School District
kept for that purpose at the principal office of the Registrar by the registered holder in person or by his duly
authorized attorney upon surrender of this Bond together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to
the Registrar duly executed by the registered holder or his duly authorized attorney. Thereupon a new fully-
registered Bond or Bonds of the same aggregate principal amount, interest rate, and maturity shall be issued
to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Resolution. The School District, the Registrar and
the Paying Agent may deem and treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered as the absolute
owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of the principal hereof and interest due
hereon and for all other purposes.

Under the laws of the State of South Carolina (the “State™), this Bond and the interest hereon are
exempt from all State, county, municipal, school district and other taxes or assessments, except estate or
other transfer taxes, direct or indirect, general or special, whether imposed for the purpose of general
revenue or otherwise.

It is hereby certified and recited that all acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and
laws of the State to exist, to happen and to be performed precedent to or in the issuance of this Bond exist,
have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by law; that
the amount of this Bond, together with all other indebtedness of the School District does not exceed the

A-2
47463786 vS



applicable limitation of indebtedness under the laws of the State; and, that provision has been made for the
levy and collection of a tax, without limit, on all taxable property in the School District sufficient to pay the
principal and interest on this Bond as it respectively matures and to create such sinking fund as may be
necessary therefor,

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON COUNTY AND
RICHLAND COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, has caused this Bond to be signed with the facsimile
signature of the Chair of the Board of Trustees of the School District, attested by the facsimile signature of
the Secretary of the Board of Trustees of the School District and the seal of the School District impressed,
imprinted or reproduced hereon.

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON
COUNTY AND RICHLAND COUNTY,
SOUTH CAROLINA

Chair, Board of Trustees

ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Trustees
[FORM OF REGISTRAR’S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION)]
Date of Authentication:

This Bond is one of the Bonds described in the within-mentioned Resolution of School District No.
5 o f Lexington County and Richland County, South Carolina.

ag Registrar

By:
Authorized Officer

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this Bond, shall be
construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations.

TEN COM - as tenants in common UNIF GIFT MIN ACT -
TEN ENT - as tenants by the Custodian
entireties (Cust) (Minor)
under Uniform Gifts to

JT TEN - as joint tenants with Minors Act

right of survivorship (state)

and not as tenants in

common

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in above list.

A-3
47463786 V5



(FORM OF ASSIGNMENT)

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto
(Name and Address of Transferee)

the within Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint
attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration
thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed (Authorized Officer)

Notice: Signature(s) must be Notice: The signature to this assignment must
guaranteed by an institution correspond with the name of the registered
which is a participant in the holder as it appears upon the face

Securities Transfer Agents Medallion of the within Bond in every particular,

Program (“STAMP™) or similar program. without alteration or enlargement or any change

whatever.

A copy of the final approving legal opinion to be rendered shall accompany each Bond and
preceding the same a certificate shall appear, which shall be signed on behalf of the School District with a
facsimile signature of the Secretary of the Board of Trustees of the School District. Said certificate shall be
in substantially the following form:

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED that the following is a true and correct copy of the final legal opinion
(except for date and letterhead) of Burr & Forman LLP, Columbia, South Carolina, approving the issue of
the Bonds of which the within Bond is one, the original of which opinion was manually executed, dated and
issued as of the date of delivery of and payment for the Bonds, and a copy of which is on file with School
District No. 5 of Lexington County and Richland County, South Carolina.

SCHOOQOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON

COUNTY AND RICHLAND COUNTY,
SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

Secretary, Board of Trustees

A-4

47463786 v5



Appendix B
FORM OF OFFICIAL NOTICE OF SALE

$ * GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2022,
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON COUNTY AND
RICHLAND COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

Date and Time of Sale: NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that bids for the purchase of
$ * General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022 (the “Bonds™), of School District No. 5 of
Lexington County and Richland County, South Carolina (the “School District”) will be received by the
Superintendent of the School District until __ a.m. (South Carolina time) on ,
, 2022,

THE SALE MAY BE CANCELLED OR POSTPONED OR ANY OTHER PROVISION
OF THIS OFFICIAL NOTICE OF SALE MAY BE AMENDED BY THE SCHOOL DISTRICT
UPON NO LESS THAN TWO HOURS PRIOR NOTICE COMMUNICATED
ELECTRONICALLY. IF SUCH A POSTPONEMENT, CHANGE OR AMENDMENT
OCCURS, BIDS WILL BE RECEIVED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS OFFICIAL NOTICE
OF SALE, AS MODIFIED BY SUCH NOTICE.

Electronic Bids Only: Electronic proposals must be submitted through IHS Markit’s
Parity/BidComp Competitive Bidding System (“Parity”). No electronic bids from any other providers of
electronic bidding services will be accepted. Information about the electronic bidding services of Parity
may be obtained from Parity, 450 West 33rd Street, 5th Floor, New York, New York 10001, Customer
Support, telephone (212) 849-5021.

The Bonds: Interest on the Bonds will be payable semiannually on March 1 and September 1 of
each year, until the Bonds mature, commencing September 1, 2022. The Bonds will be dated their date of
delivery, on or about May __ , 2022, and will mature serially in annual installments on March 1 in each
of the years and in the principal amounts as shown below:

March 1 Principal
{(Year) Amount*

Adjustment of Maturity Amounts: The School District reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to
increase or decrease the foregoing principal amounts of the Bonds (all calculations to be rounded up to
the nearest $5,000), provided that any such increase or decrease shall not exceed 15% of the par amount
of the Bonds or such other amount as approved by the winning bidder. Such adjustments, if any, shall be
made within twenty-four (24) hours of the award of the Bonds.

*Preliminary, subject to adjustment,

B-1
47463786 v5



In the event of any adjustments of the maturity amounts of the Bonds as described herein, no
rebidding or recalculation of the proposals submitted will be required or permitted. The total purchase
price of the Bonds will be increased or decreased in the direct proportion that the total adjustment bears
to the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds adjusted as specified herein, and the Bonds of each
maturity, as adjusted, will bear interest at the rate specified in the bid of the successful bidder. Such
adjustments, if any, will not change the selling compensation per $1,000 of par amount of the Bonds
from the selling compensation per $1,000 that would have been received based on the purchase price and
the initial reoffering prices in the winning bid.

Book-Entry-Only Bonds: The Bonds will be issued in fully-registered form. One Bond will be
issued to and registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New
York, New York (“DTC”), as registered owner of the Bonds and the Bonds will be immobilized in the
custody of DTC. DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. Individual purchases will be made
in book-entry-only form, in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof not exceeding
the principal amount of the Bonds. Purchasers will not receive physical delivery of certificates
representing their interest in the Bonds purchased. The winning bidder, as a condition to delivery of the
Bonds, will be required to deposit the Bond certificate with DTC.

Redemption Provisions: The Bonds will not be subject to redemption prior to their stated
maturities,

Registrar/Paying Agent: U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, St. Paul, Minnesota,
shall serve as Registrar/Paying Agent for the Bonds.

Bid Requirements: Bidders shall specify the rate of interest per annum which the Bonds are to
bear, to be expressed in multiples of 1/20 or 1/8 of 1%. No interest rate for the Bonds can exceed five
percent (5%) per annum or be less than four percent (4%) per annum, The TIC (as defined below) shall
not exceed 2.5%. A BID FOR LESS THAN ALL THE BONDS OR A BID AT A PRICE LESS THAN
PAR WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED.

Award of Bid: The Bonds will be awarded to the bidder offering to purchase the Bonds at the
lowest true interest cost to the School District, such cost to be determined in accordance with the true
interest cost (TIC) method. The true interest cost will be determined by computing the total dollar
interest cost from the date of the Bonds to the respective maturity dates (based on a 360-day year of 12
months of 30 days each) and deducting therefrom the amount of the premiwmn offered, if any, over and
above the principal amount. In the event of a tie bid, the winning bid will be awarded by lot. The School
District reserves the right to reject any and all bids or to waive irregularities in any bid. Bids will be
accepted or rejected no later than 3:00 p.m., South Carolina time, on the date of sale.

Good Faith Deposit: No good faith deposit is required.

Official Statement: Upon the award of the Bonds, the School District will prepare an official
statement (the “Official Statement”) in substantially the same form as the preliminary official statement
(the “Preliminary Official Statement™) subject to minor additions, deletions and revisions as required to
complete the Official Statement. Within seven (7) business days after the award of the Bonds, the School
District will deliver the Official Statement to the successful bidder in sufficient quantity to comply with
Rule G-32 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

Security: The Bonds shall constitute binding general obligations of the School District, and the
full faith, credit, resources and taxing power of the School District are irrevocably pledged for the

B-2
47463786 v5



payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds as they respectively mature and to create such sinking
fund as may be necessary therefor. There shall be levied and collected annually upon all taxable property
of the School District a tax, without limitation as to rate or amount, sufficient for such purposes.

Continuing Disclosure: In order to assist the bidders in complying with Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5)
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, the School District will undertake, pursuant to a
resolution and a Continuing Disclosure Certificate to provide certain annual financial information and
notices of the occurrence of certain events. A description of this undertaking is set forth in the Preliminary
Official Statement and will also be set forth in the Official Statement.

Legal Opinion: The School District shall furnish upon delivery of the Bonds the final approving
opinion of Burr & Forman LLP, Columbia, South Carolina, which opinion shall accompany each Bond,
together with the usual closing documents, including a certificate that no litigation is pending affecting the
Bonds.

Issue Price Certificate: The winning bidder shall assist the School District in establishing the
issue price of the Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the School District at delivery an “issue price”
certificate setting forth the reasonably expected initial offering price to the public, with such
modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in the reasonable judgment of the winning bidder, the
School District and Bond Counsel. A sample copy of the certificate may be obtained from Burr &
Forman LLP. :

The School District intends that the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(£)(3)(i)
(defining “competitive sale” for purposes of establishing the issue price of the Bonds) will apply to the
initial sale of the Bonds (the “Competitive Sale Requirements”™) because:

1) the School District shall disseminate this Notice of Sale to potential underwriters
in a manner that is reasonably designed to reach potential underwriters;

2) all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to bid;

3) the School District may receive bids from at least three underwriters of
municipal bonds who have established industry reputations for underwriting new
issuances of municipal bonds; and

@ the School District anticipates awarding the sale of the Bonds to the bidder who
submits a firm offer to purchase the Bonds at the highest price {or lowest true
interest cost), as set forth in this Notice of Sale.

Any bid submitted pursuant to this Notice of Sale shall be considered a firm offer for the
purchase of the Bonds, as specified in the bid.

In the event that the Competitive Sale Requirements are not satisfied, the School District shall so
advise the winning bidder. The School District may determine to treat the initial offering price to the
public as of the sale date of the Bonds as the issue price of the Bonds (the “Hold-the-Offering-Price
Rule™). The School District shall promptly advise the winning bidder, at or before the time of award of
the Bonds, that the Bonds shall be subject to the Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule, Bids will not be subject
to cancellation in the event that the School District determines to apply the Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule

to the Bonds. Bidders should prepare their bids on the assumption that the Bonds will be subject to the
Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule in order to establish the issue price of the Bonds.

B-3
47463786 v5



By submitting a bid, the winning bidder shall (1} confirm that the underwriters have offered or
will offer the Bonds to the public on or before the date of award at the offering price (the “Initial
Offering Price™), or at the corresponding yield, set forth in the bid submitted by the winning bidder and
(2) agree, on behalf of the underwriters participating in the purchase of the Bonds, that‘the underwriters
will neither offer nor sell unsold Bonds to which the Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule shall apply to any
person at a price that is higher than the Initial Offering Price to the public during the period starting on
the sale date and ending on the earlier of the following;

(1) the close of the fifth (5™) business day after the sale date; or

(2) the date on which the underwriters have sold at least 10% of the Bonds to the
public at a price that is no higher than the Initial Offering Price to the public (the
“10% Test™).

The winning bidder will advise the School District promptly after the close of the fifth (5th)
business day after the sale date whether it has when the underwriters have sold 10% of that maturity of
the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the Initial Offering Price to the public.

The School District acknowledges that, in making the representation set forth above, the winning
bidder will rely on (1) the agreement of each underwriter to comply with the Hold-the-Offering-Price
Rule, as set forth in an agreement among underwriters and the related pricing wires, (2) in the event a
selling group has been created in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the
agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group to comply with the Hold-the-Offering-
Price Rule, as set forth in a selling group agreement and the related pricing wires, and (3) in the event
that an underwriter is a party to a retail distribution agreement that was employed in connection with the *
initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the agreement of each broker-dealer that is a party to such
agreement to comply with the Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule, as set forth in the retail distribution
agreement and the related pricing wires. The School District further acknowledges that each vnderwriter
shall be solely liable for its failure to comply with its agreement regarding the Hold-the-Offering-Price
Rule and that no underwriter shall be liable for the failure of any other underwriter, or of any dealer who
is a member of a selling group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to
comply with its corresponding agreement regarding the Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule as applicable to the
Bonds.

By submitting a bid, each bidder confirms that: (1) any agreement among underwriters, any
selling group agreement and each retail distribution agreement (to which the bidder is a party) relating to
the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain
language obligating each underwriter, each dealer who is a member of the selling group, and each broker-
dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreement, as applicable, to (a) report the prices at which
it sells to the public the unsold Bonds allotted to it until it is notified by the winning bidder that either the
10% Test has been satisfied as to the Bonds or all Bonds have been sold to the public and (b) comply
with the Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed by the
winning bidder and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and (2) any agreement among underwriters
relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or
will contain language obligating each underwriter that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to be
employed in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public to require each broker-dealer that
is a party to such retail distribution agreement to (a) report the prices at which it sells to the public the
unsold Bonds allotted to it until it is notified by the winning bidder or such underwriter that either the
10% Test has been satisfied as to the Bonds or all Bonds have been sold to the public and (b) comply

B4

47463786 v5



with the Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed by the
winning bidder or such underwriter and as set forth in the related pricing wires.

Sales of any Bonds to any person that is a related party to an underwriter shall not constitute
sales to the public for purposes of this Notice of Sale. Further, for purposes of this Notice of Sale:

(1) “public” means any person other than an underwriter or a related party,

2 “underwriter” means (a) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract
with the School District (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting
syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public and (b) any
person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a
person described in clause (a) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the
public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution
agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public),

(3) a purchaser of any of the Bonds is a “related party” to an underwriter if the
underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (a) at least
50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if
both entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of
another), (b) more than 50% common ownership of their capital interests or
profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including direct ownership by
one partnership of another), or (c¢) more than 50% common ownership of the
value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit
interests of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the
other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of the applicable stock
or interests by one entity of the other), and

(GY] “sale date” means the date that the Bonds are awarded by the School District to
the winning bidder.

Financial Advisor: PFM Financial Advisors LLC (“PFM”) is acting as Financial Advisor (the
“Financial Advisor™) to the School District in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. PFM, in its
capacity as Financial Advisor, has not verified and does not assume any responsibility for the information,
covenants and representations contained in any of the legal documents with respect to the federal income
tax status of the Bonds, or the possible impact of any present, pending or future actions taken by any
legislative or judicial bodies or rating agencies.

Delivery: The Bonds will be delivered on or about May __ , 2022, in New York, New York, at the
expense of the School District, or at such other place as may be agreed upon with the purchasers at the
expense of the purchaser. The purchase price then due must be paid in federal funds or other immediately
available funds.

CUSIP Numbers: It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be set forth on the
Bonds, but neither the failure to print such numbers on any Bond nor any error with respect thereto shall
constitute cause for failure or refusal by the purchaser thereof to accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds in
accordance with the terms of its proposal. The Financial Advisor will request the assignment of CUSIP
numbers prior to the sale of the Bonds; however, the CUSIP Service Bureau charge for the assignment of
said numbers will be the responsibility of and will be paid for by the successful bidder.

B-5
47463786 v5



Additional Information: The Preliminary Official Statement with respect to the Bonds is available
via the internet at www.munios.com and will be furnished to any person interested in bidding for the Bonds.
The Preliminary Official Statement shall be reviewed by bidders prior to submitting a bid. Bidders may not
rely on this Notice of Sale as to the complete information concerning the Bonds. For additional information
relating to or to request a copy of the Preliminary Official Statement, please contact the School District’s
Bond Counsel, Francenia B. Heizer, Esquire, Burr & Forman LLP, telephone (803) 799-9800, e-mail:
fheizer@burr.com or the Financial Advisor, Elise Lomel or Jay Glover, PFM Financial Advisors LLC,
telephone (404) 410-2227 or (407) 406-5760, respectively, e-mail: lomele@pfm.com or gloverj@pfm.com,
respectively.

School District No. 5 of Lexington County and
Richland County, South Carolina

B-6

47463786 v5



Appendix C
FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Disclosure Certificate™) is executed and delivered
by School District No. 5 of Lexington County and Richland County, South Carolina (the “School
District”) in connection with the issuance of §$ General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022,
School District No. 5 of Lexington County and Richland County, South Carolina (the “Bonds™). The
Bonds are being issued pursuant to a Resolution adopted by the Board of Trustees of the School District
(the “Resolution™). The School District covenants and agrees as follows:

SECTION 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being
executed and delivered by the School District for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds and in order to
assist the Participating Underwriter (defined below) in complying with the Rule (defined below).

SECTION 2. Definitions. The following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the School District pursuant to, and
as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

“Dissemination Agent” shall mean the School District or any successor Dissemination Agent
designated in writing by the School District and which has filed with the School District a written
acceptance of such designation.

“Financial Obligation™ is defined by the Rule as and for purposes of this Disclosure Certificate
shall mean (1) a debt obligation, (2) a derivative instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged
as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation, or (3) a guarantee of either
of the foregoing; provided, however, that a “Financial Obligation” shall not include municipal securities
as to which a final official statement has been provided to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board
consistent with the Rule.

“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure Certificate.

“National Repository” shall mean for purposes of the Rule, the Electronic Municipal Market
Access (EMMA) system created by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

“Repository” shall mean the National Repository and each State Depository, if any.

“Participating Underwriter” shall mean and any other original underwriter of
the Bonds required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds.

“Rule” shall mean Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time.

“State Depository” shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by the State
of South Carolina as a state depository for the purpose of the Rule. As of the date of this Certificate,
there is no State Depository.

C-1
47463786 V5



SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports.

(a) The School District shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to provide, not later
than February 1 of each year, commencing in 2023, to the Repository an Annual Report which is
consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. Not later than fifteen (15)
business days prior to such date the School District shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination
Agent, if other than the School District; provided, that if the audited financial statements required
pursuant to Section 4 hereof to be included in the Annual Report are not available for inclusion in the
Annual Report as of such date, unaudited financial statements of the School District may be included in
such Annual Report in lieu thereof, and the School District shall replace such unaudited financial
statements with audited financial statements within fifteen (15) days after such audited financial
statements become available for distribution. The Annnal Report may be submitted as a single document
or as separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as provided
in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that the audited financial statements of the School
District may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report.

)] If the School District is unable to provide to the Repository an Annual Report by the date
required in subsection (a), the School District shall send a notice to the Repository, in substantially the
form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

(c) The Dissemination Agent shall:

(1) determine each year prior to the date for providing the Annual Report the name
and address of the Repository; and

(2) if the Dissemination Agent is other than the School District, file a report with the
School District and (if the Dissemination Agent is not the Registrar) the Registrar certifying
whether the Annual Report has been provided pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate, and, if
provided, stating the date it was provided, and listing the Repository to which it was provided.

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Reports. The School District’s Annual Report shall contain or
incorporate by reference the most recent audited financial statements, which shall be prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (or, if not in such conformity, to be
accompanied by a qualitative discussion of the differences in the accounting principles and the impact of
the change in the accounting principles on the presentation of the financial information) applicable to
governmental entities such as the School District, and shall, in addition, contain or incorporate by
reference the following information for the most recently completed fiscal year:

(a) School District enrollment;

) Total state appropriations subject to withholding under Article X, Sec. 15,
South Carolina Constitution;

() Funding under the Education Finance Act, and the Education Improvement Act;

(d) Outstanding General Obligation Indebtedness of the School District;

(e) Market Value/Assessment Summary of taxable property in School District;

H Tax rate for School District;

(g) Tax collections for School District; and

(h) Ten largest taxpayers (including fee-in-lieu-of-tax) for School District.

47463786 v5



Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other documents,
including official statements of debt issues with respect to which the School District is an “obligated
person” {as defined by the Rule), which have been filed with the Repository or the Securities and
Exchange Commission. If the document incorporated by reference is a final official statement, it must be
available from the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, The School District shall clearly identify
each such other document so incorporated by reference.

SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events,

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the School District shall give, or cause to be
given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events (the “Listed Events™):

(N Principal and interest payment delinquencies;

(2) Non-payment related defaults;

3 Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
G)] Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
)] Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

(6) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Intemnal Revenue Service of proposed
or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-
TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of
the security, or other material events affecting the tax status of the security;

@) Modifications to rights of security holders;

8 Bond calls;

9 Tender offers;

(10)  Defeasances;

(11)  Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the securities;

(12)  Rating changes;

(13)  Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the School District;

(14)  The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the
School District or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the School
District other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive
agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive
agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms;

(15)  Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a
trustee.

(16) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the School District; or agreement to
covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a
Financial Obligation of the School District, any of which affect security holders;

(17)  Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other
similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the School District,
any of which reflect financial difficulties.

(b) Whenever the School District obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event
described in subsections (a)(2), (7), (8), (11), (14), (15) or (16) above, the School District shall as soon as
possible determine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities laws. If the School
District determines that knowledge of the occurrence of such event would be material under applicable
federal securities laws, the School District shall promptly, and no later than ten business days after the
occurrence of the event, file a notice of such occurrence with the Repository.

C-3
47463786 V5



(c) Whenever the School District obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event
described in subsections (a)(1), (3), (4), (5), (6), (9), (10), (12), (13) or (17) above, the School District
shall promptly, and no later than ten business days after the occurrence of the event, file a notice of such
occurrence with the Repository.

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Listed Events described in subsections (a)(8),
(9), and (10) above need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the notice (if any) of the
underlying event is given to owners of affected Bonds. For the purposes of the event identified in (a)(13)
above, the event is considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver,
fiscal agent or similar officer for the School District in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or
in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has
assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the School District, or if such
jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in
possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of
an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental
authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the School
District.

SECTION 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The School District’s obligations under this
Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of the
Bond.

SECTION 7. Dissemination Agent. The School District may, from time to time, appoint or
engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate,
and may discharge any such Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. The
initial Dissemination Agent shall be the School District.

SECTION 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure
Certificate, the School District may amend this Disclosure Certificate and any provision of this
Disclosure Certificate may be waived, if such amendment or waiver is supported by an opinion of
counsel expert in federal securities laws acceptable to the School District, to the effect that such
amendment or waiver would not, in and of itself, cause the undertakings herein to violate the Rule if such
amendment or waiver had been effective on the date hereof but taking into account any subsequent
change in or official interpretation of the Rule.

SECTION 9. Additional Information, Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to
prevent the School District from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination
set forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other
information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is
required by this Disclosure Certificate. If the School District chooses to include any information in any
Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is specifically required
by this Disclosure Certificate, the School District shall have no obligation under this Certificate to update
such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.

SECTION 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the School District, or the Dissemination
Agent to comply with any provision of this Disclosure Certificate, any beneficial owner may take such
actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking injunctive relief or specific performance
by court order, to cause the School District, or the Dissemination Agent, as the case may be, to comply
with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. A default under this Disclosure Certificate shall
not be deemed an event of default under the Resolution, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure

C-4
47463786 v5



Certificate in the event of any failure of the School District, or the Dissemination Agent to comply with
this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance.

SECTION 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The provisions of
this Section 11 shall apply if the School District is not the Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination

Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Certificate, and the
School District agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, employees
and agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which they may incur arising out of or in
the exercise or performance of their powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses
(including attorneys’ fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities due to the
Dissemination Agent’s negligence or willful misconduct. The obligations of the School District under
this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bond.

SECTION 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the
School District, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriter, and holders from time to time of
the Bonds and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON
COUNTY AND RICHLAND COUNTY,
SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

Superintendent

Dated: _,2022

C-5
47463786 v5



EXHIBIT A

NOTICE TO REPOSITORY OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT

Name of School District: School District No. 5 of Lexington County and Richland County,
South Carolina

Name of Bond Issue: $ General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022,
School District No. 5 of Lexington County and
Richland County, South Carolina

Date of Issuance: _ 2022

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that School District No. 5 of Lexington County and Richland
County, South Carolina (the “School District”) has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the
above-named Bonds as required by Sections 3 and 4 of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate executed
and delivered by the School District as Dissemination Agent. The School District has notified us in
writing that the Annual Report will be filed by

Dated:

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON
COUNTY AND RICHLAND COUNTY,
SOUTH CAROLINA

C-6

47463786 v5



BURR'E'FORMANLLP % uded with
is included w

resulls maitter Attachment J
the minutes of the (3 e =afd=—"___

meaungf the ?;Lfé gf Boarﬁ Egber
pursuant to Soutk-Carolina Code

-4-90(a)(4) - E
Ann. Section 30 ( )(The s Aoy

‘ nd Board Policy BEDG.
M E M 0 R A N D U M (aiid not approve, disapprove, or otherwise
act upon the contents of this attachment.

To: Jan Hammond, Chair, Board of Trustees
School District No. 5 of Lexington County and Richland County, SC

Ce: Akil E. Ross, Sr., Superintendent

Marty Rawls, Chief Financial Officer

School District No. 5 of Lexington County and Richland County, SC
From: Francenia B. Heizer, Esquire

Date: ° March 23,2022

Subject:  Questions related to the Series 2022 Bonds

We understand that the Board has two questions relating to the Series 2022 Bonds (the “Bonds”).

The first question is, Will the final amount of the Bonds be within the School District’s constitutional
debt limit?

The short answer is “yes.” Even though the not to exceed amount is higher than the School District’s
current constitutional debt limit, the Resolution delegates to the Superintendent the authority to determine
the par amount to be issued. Under South Carolina (“State) law, the par amount cannot be more than the
constitutional debt limit of the School District. Therefore, the Superintendent will have to select a par
amount equal to or less than the amount available under the School District’s constitutional debt limit.

We used the not to exceed amount of $49,000,000 because that is the amount the School District has seen
as the costs of the projects (the “Projects”). We anticipate that a premium will be part of the sale of the
Bonds such that the par amount of the Bonds (not exceeding the 8% constitutional debt limit) plus the
premium will provide the School District the amount needed for the Projects. A premium is an amount
offered by the purchaser of a series of bonds which raises the coupon interest rate to be received by the
holder of the bonds. Premium is, in effect, prepaid interest and does not count against the School
District’s constitutional debt limit.

The second question is, What would be approved uses of the premium received on the Bonds other than
the uses that have been identified in the Resolution?

In addition to the premium being used to pay the costs of the Projects, if there is any remaining premium,
the Board would direct the manner in which it would be used.

AL e DE « FL e GA = MS e NC » SC « TN



Memorandum
Page 2
March 23, 2022

Prior to 2004, State law restricted the use of premium for school districts, cities and counties by requiring
it to be deposited in a debt service fund. In 2004, the law was amended with respect to school districts so
that premium was no longer required to be deposited into a debt service fund. There is in effect no State
law limiting or dictating the use of premium.

In the absence of statutory restrictions or restrictions derived from an appellate court decision, the use of
premium is within the Board’s discretion. Generally, we see school districts use the premium as
contributions to funding for their capital improvements plans. If there are millage constraints, school
districts sometimes use some or all of the premium for debt service. Each school district makes its
decisions based upon its individual needs.

Iplan to be at the Board meeting on March 28, but if any other questions come up prior to then, please let
me know.

FBH:laf



EXHIBIT D

MEMORANDUM
To: Members of the Board of Trustees

Through: Dr. Akil E. Ross, Sr.
Superintendent

From: Anna M. Miller,
Chief Academic and Administration Officer

Date: April 20, 2022

Re: April 25, 2022 Board Meeting
Action Item: Approval of Textbook Adoption

Item: FY2022-2023 Textbook Adoption

Background: In accordance with Board Policy 1)) Textbook Selection and Adoption, textbook
review committees, comprised of teachers, administrators, and parents reviewed texts from
the approved list from the state department of education and are bringing the attached
textbook recommendations for School District Five to you for your review.

Science, Grades K-5
Science, Grades 6-8

Recommendation: The administration supports the approval of these textbooks and
recommends that the Board approve these FY2022-2023 textbook adoptions.




School District Five of Lexington & Richland Counties

Recommendation for Instructional Materials Adoption

Subject: Science Grade level/Cluster: K-5
Title: National Geographic: Exploring Science Author: National Geographic Learning
Publisher: Cengage Copyright Date: 2019

1L

III.

Comments reflect both the resuits of the scale scoring and evidence indicated

on the Instructional Appraisal Worksheet from all schools.

Content and Alignment (18/20)

2019 copyright with current and accurate information

Aligned to South Carolina College- and Career-Ready Science Standards 2021 at each grade-level
ELA strategies, leveled books, math terminology, graphing exercises, and STEAM components
Pictures, illustrations, companion texts and online components present diversity and connections to

other cultures

Organization and Style (21/25)

Text demands and print layout are appropriate and modifiable online; companion books at various
lexiles

Superior and appropriate incorporation of graphs, tables, current photographs (engaging and
relevant)

Differentiated opportunities are embedded throughout the program

Each lesson includes a “tap prior knowledge” section that provides questions for assessment of
student understanding

Multiple opportunities to be responsive to student needs; in K-5 there are units that emphasize

modeling and design and in grades 3-5 there is scientific argumentation

Instructional Supports (17/20)

Offers at least 2-3 hands-on investigations for each unit
Students have access to online resources (videos/ebooks/virtual labs), investigations, trade books,
and STEM projects

Support for below-level, on-level, gifted and talented, multi-language, and students with disabilities



A detailed guide for teachers (print and digital) and a teacher handbook including notebooking

examples, questioning strategies, rubrics, assessments, and connections to digital resources

V. Technology (21/25)

Virtual interviews with scientists, National Geographic videos, and virtual labs with immediate
feedback

Digital content is current and easily updated; the publisher will update materials

Publisher will provide professional development {in-person, Zoom, webinars) and ongoing technical
support

Digital access through MindTap allows students to perform virtual labs, keep virtual notebooks and
take assessments

Resources can be utilized to redesign tasks and provide investigative experiences

V. Monitoring Student Progress {21/25)

Rubrics, self-assessment checklists, pre- and post-assessments, and exemplars are provided
Scenario-based digital alternatives, project-based, STEM activities, multiple-choice, and ExamView
test bank assessment options

Tests can be created and customized

Multiple assessments for each unit, lesson, and lab with different forms of questions

ExamView item bank is available and the teacher digital version allows customization and creation

of assessments based on topics and standards

Content Coordinater Name: Beth Boland

Content Coordinator Signature: Beth, Bsland Date: March 30. 2022

Adopted 4/28/86; Revised 9/19/2017



School District Five of Lexington & Richland Counties

Recommendation for Instructional Materials Adoption

Subject: Science Grade level/Cluster:  6-8
Title: STEMsceopes 3D Author:  Jarret Reid Whitaker
Publisher: Accelerate Learning Copyright Date: 2021

Comments reflect both the results of the scale scoring and evidence indicated

on the Instructional Appraisal Worksheet from all schools.

L Content and Alignment (18/20)

e The scientific content is current and accurate.
e The resource is standards-aligned and representative of three-dimensional science learning.
e Connections are made to other disciplines such as math and coding.

e Content presented makes connections to real world application of information.

I1. Organization and Style (22/25)

e The lexile level range is between 925-1185.
e Scopes are easy to follow with a great variety of tables, graphs, and pictures.
e The lexile can be adjusted using online resources.
" o Each lesson follows the 5E (engage, explore, explain, elaborate, evaluate} model of instruction.

e Students are exposed to content in multiple formats.

III.  Instructional Supports ( 19/20)

e The claim, evidence, and reasoning approach engages students in authentic learming.

e There are embedded interactive lab simulations.

e There is a dedicated intervention and acceleration section for every lesson.

e In-depth background knowlege, videos for hands-on lessons, classroom management tips, and other
resources such as “STEMCoach in Action” are provided for teachers in a well-organized and easy to

navigate format.



IV.

Technology (21/25)

Virtual learning envionment integrates PhET labs and other virtual oppottunities.

STEMscépe streaming is available for updated information.

Flexible professional development and online technical support available.

Online platform contains a coding component and opportunities for demonstrating learning through
virtual experiences.

Simulations allow student experiences beyond the middle school classroom.

Monitoring Student Progress (22/25)

Student assignments are accompanied by rubics and scoring guides.

Multiple assessment formats are available including CER questions, projects, and tranditional
assessments,

There are customizable pre and post tests, formative and summative assessments to provide student
feedback.

Assessment data can be viewd in multiple ways (tables, graphs).

Assessment builder has a large bank of questions and customizing assessments is easy.

Content Coordinator Name: Beth Boland

Content Coordinator Signature: Beth, Beland Date: Marcf 30 2092

Adopted 4/28/86; Revised 9/19/2017



EXHIBIT E

MEMORANDUM

TO: Members of the Board of Trustees
Dr. Akil E. Ross, Sr., Superintgndent

FROM: Dr. Michael R. Harris
DATE: April 21, 2022
RE: April 25, 2022 Board Meeting, Request to Suspend Policy.

Board Policy ADD “Face Covering”

Following the occurrence and subsequent spread of the pandemic (COVID-19), the Centers for
Disease Control (CDC) and the South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control
(DHEC) advised that a face covering be worn in public scttings as onc of scveral mitigating
strategies. Immediately following, a model policy was provided by the South Carolina School
Boards Association (SCSBA) to all school districts for implementation.

Consequently, School District Five remained adherent to the recommendations made by health
officials by applying and maintaining a face covering requirement for students, staff and visitors.
To date, the spread of (COVID-19) has significantly reduced and minimal mitigation strategies
continue throughout the school district.

As such, the Policy ADD - “Face Covering” is no longer applicable in its current form and
suspension of the policy is recommended. However, students and staff who opt to wear a face
covering may continue to do so without concern for reprisals.

Recommendation:

The administration recommends the suspension of Policy ADD - “Face Covering.”

Attachment: JFABB “Face Covering”
www lexrichd.org
1020 Dutch Fork Road « Irmo, South Carolina 29063 « (803) 476-8000
“Pursuing Excellence for Tomorrow's Challenges”



4/20/22, 914 AM Document

Policy ADD Face Covering

Issued 8/20

To reduce the spread of the pandemic (COVID-19), the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) recommends that a
face covering be worn in public settings when other social distancing measures are difficult to maintain. The
district will consider the circumstances in the community and consult local health officials for the
implementation of this policy.

Definitions

A face covering 1s a piece of fabric, cloth, or other material that covers the wearer’s nose, mouth, and chin
simultaneously and is secured to the wearer’s face by elastic, ties, or other means. Acceptable face coverings
may be homemade, and they may be reusable or disposable.

A face shield made of flexible plastic that wraps around the wearer’s face and extends below his/her chin may
also be used as a face covering.

Staff Members

Staff members are required to wear a face covering while on district property or conducting business on behalf
of the district (e.g. driving a bus, conducting a home visit, supervising athletic events, etc.). Staff members
include, but are not limited to, salaried and hourly employees, school volunteers, student teachers, and interns.
The district will provide masks to staff members and expects that reusable masks will be washed regularly to
ensure maximum protection,

Students

All students are required to wear face coverings while on district property, including the classrooms, on district
transportation, or attending a school related activity (e.g. athletic events, field trips, etc.). Certain classes or
activities may be granted a limited exception to this requirement at the discretion of the superintendent or his/her
designee. The district will provide masks to students who are unable to provide their own and expects that
reusable masks will be washed regularly to ensure maximum protection.

Exceptions for wearing a face covering may include, but are not limited to, the following activities:

¢ mealtimes

+ outdoor recess where students can maintain a physical distance of at least six (6) feet

administration of medication

when seated at workspaces and social distancing permits, at the discretion of the superintendent or his/her
designee

Visitors

Non-essential visitors to district buildings will be limited in accordance with administrative rule XI-R, Visitors.
Visitors include, but are not limited to, parents/legal guardians, contract service providers, and delivery persons.
Visitors are required to wear a face covering while on district property.

Accommodations

Requests for exceptions under this policy for health or developmental conditions or religious exemption will be
considered by the superintendent or his/her designee, who may request documentation justifying the exception.

Students (or parents/legal guardians) who request to be exempted from wearing a face covering for other than a
health or developmental condition or religious exemption will be offered virtual learning for the period that face

https://boardpolicyonline.com/?h=lex5 112



4/20/22, 9:14 AM Document
coverings are required on district property.

Harassment and Bullying

The district will not tolerate harassment of anyone wearing face coverings or those with recognized exemptions
to the face covering requirement and will appropriately discipline students, staff, or visitors who engage in
behavior that interferes with any student or staff member’s ability to comply with this policy.

Discipline

Failure or refusal to wear a face covering by a staff member or student may result in discipline in accordance
with district policy and codes of conduct, as applicable.

This policy is intended to be effective until further notice and to align with district policies, including, but not
limited to, student and staff dress codes. To the extent this policy does not align, this policy will supersede others
in accordance with applicable law and regulations in effect at the time. For clarification on potential conflicts
between policies, the interpretation of the superintendent or his/her designee is final.

The board authorizes the superintendent or his/her designee to amend these requirements as necessary to meet
health and safety guidelines.

Adopted 8/10/20

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

https://boardpolicyonline.com/?b=lexs 2/2



EXHIBIT F
FACE COVERING RESOLUTION

Adopted 5/10/21

To reduce the spread of the pandemic (COVID-19), the Centers for Disease Control {CDC) recommends that a face covering
be worn in public settings when other social distancing measures are difficult to maintain, The district will consider the
circumstances in the community and consuit local health officials for the implementation of this reselution.

Definitions

A face covering is a piece of fabric, cloth, or other material that covers the wearer's nose, mouth, and chin simuitaneously and is
secured to the wearer’s face by elastic, ties, or other means. Acceptable face coverings may be homemade, and they may be
reusable or disposable.

A face shield made of flexible plastic that wraps around the wearer’s face and extends below hisfher chin may also be used as a
face covering.

Staff Members

Staff members are strongly encouraged to wear a face covering while on district property or conducting business on behaif of the
district (e.g. driving a bus, conducting a home visit, supervising athletic events, etc.). Staff members include, but are not limited to,
salaried and hourly employees, school volunteers, student teachers, and interns. The district will provide masks to staff members and
expects that reusable masks will be washed regularly to ensure maximum protection.

Students

Face coverings are encouraged to be worn by all students and teachers when entering and exiting school buildings, while in the
hallways and common areas, and while in close proximity to others. Students and staff may remove their face coverings in the
classroom, while social distancing and while outside. Further, the following shall be exempt from this protocol:

1. Any person who is unable to safely wear a face covering due to age, an undetlying health condition, or is unable to remove the
face covering without the assistance of others;

2, While a person is in their private individual office; and

3. While actively eating or drinking, which can include taking medication.

The district will provide masks to students who are unable to provide their own and expects that reusable masks will be washed
regularly to ensure maximum protection,

Transportation

As school buses are owned, funded and maintained by the South Carclina Department of Education, students and staff utilizing these
buses for transport to and from school will be expected to adhere to the South Carolina Department of Education Face Covering
Guidelines for School Buses. Face coverings are required for all staff, including bus drivers, faculty, students, and volunteers. These
requirements will he enforced with disciplinary action as needed. The district will provide bus drivers with extra masks for those whe
need them in order to comply with the SCDOE regulations.

Visitors

Non-essential visitors to district buildings will be limited in accordance with administrative rule KI-R, Visifors, Visitors include, but
are not imited to, parents/legal guardians, contract service providers, and delivery persons. Visitors are required to wear a face
covering while on district property.

Harassment and Bullying

The district will not tolerate harassment of anyone wearing or not wearing face coverings and will appropriately discipline students, staff,
or visitors who engage in behavior that interferes with any student or staff member’s ability to comply with this resolution.

This resolution is intended to be effective until either an Executive QOrder from the Governor or the State School Board changes their
mask guidelines, at which time this resolution will be fully null and veid. This resolution will align with district pelicies, including, but not
limited to, student and staff dress codes. To the extent this resolution does not align, this resolution will supersede others in accordance
with applicable law and regulations in effect at the time. For clarification on potential conflicts, the interpretation falls to the
superintendent and can be appealed to the schoo! board.

Adopted 5/10/2021

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



EXHIBIT G

MEMORANDUM

To: Members of the Board of Trustees

Through: Dr. Akil E. Ross, Sr.
Superintendent

From: Todd A. Bedenbaugh /%

Executive Director of Operations
Date: April 20, 2022

Re: Discussion Agenda: April 25, 2022 Board Meeting
Discussion Regarding Contingency Requests for Capital Funds and ESSER Funds

Issue: Oak Pointe Elementary has $40,000 in funds allocated for a front sign marquee from the
2021 Remaining Capital Funds approved in October 2022. The marquee sign is not going to be
replaced therefore we are requesting to use these funds for furniture replacements throughout
Oak Pointe Elementary instead.

We have $40,000 left in ESSER Il Priority 13 (School Facility Repairs and Improvements) that was
initially allocated for permanent glass structures in the front offices. We would like to use
these funds to purchase and install permanent ultra violet lights to disinfect air in all schools in
the front reception areas and the health rooms.

Additionally, we have some remaining ESSER funds unallocated. There is a need to replace
HVAC units at Ballentine Elementary, Chapin Intermediate, and Chapin High School. Window
replacements are needed on the 5™ grade wing at Seven Oaks Elementary. The total estimated
cost for all of these replacements is $90,000 and these expenditures qualify to use ESSER
funding.

Recommendation: The administration recommends the capital funds be reallocated from
marquee sign to furniture replacements at Oak Pointe Elementary.

wwiw lexrichb.org
1020 Dutch Fork Road « Irmo, South Caralina 29063 - (803) 476-8000
“Pursuing Excellence for Tomorrow's Challenges”



The administration recommends reallocation of ESSER funds from permanent glass structures
to districtwide installation of ultraviolet lighting in ESSER Il priority 13.

The administration recommends to utilize ESSER funds to provide the replacements needed at
Ballentine Elementary, Chapin Intermediate, Chapin High and Seven QOaks.

TAB: cr



4/20/22, 5:44 PM CURRENT POLICY

Policy BCA Board Member Code of Ethics - EXHIBIT Y4

Issued 1/06

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for ethical board conduct.

The public schools play a vital and important role in our state and couniry by providing the basic foundation for
democratic living and for sustaining the American way of life. Therefore, school board membership represents a
challenging responsibility. This code of ethics is adopted by the board as a guide to its members as they strive to
render effective and efficient service to their community.

A board member should honor the critical responsibilities that his/her membership demands by doing the
following:

thinking always in terms of "children first"

¢ understanding that the basic function of a school board is policymaking, not administration, and by

accepting the responsibility of learning to discriminate intelligently between these two functions
accepting the responsibility along with his/her fellow board members of ensuring that optimal facilities
and resources are provided for the proper functioning of schools

+ refusing to play politics in either the traditional partisan or any petty sense

representing, at all times, the entire school district

accepting the responsibility of becoming well informed concerning the duties of board members and the
proper functions of public schools

recognizing responsibility as a state official to seek the improvement of education throughout the state

A board member should respect his/her relationships with other members of the board by doing the following:

recognizing that authority rests only with the board in official meetings and that the individual member
has no legal status to bind the board outside of such meetings

recognizing the integrity of his/her predecessors and associates and the merit of their work

refusing to make statements or promises as to how he/she will vote on any matter which should properly
come before the board as a whole

making decisions only after all facts bearing on a question have been presented and discussed
respecting the opinion of others and graciously conforming to the principle of majority rule

refusing to participate in irregular meetings such as secret or "star chamber" meetings which are not
official and which all members do not have the opportunity to attend

maintaining the confidentiality of matters discussed in executive session

A board member should maintain desirable relations with the superintendent of schools and his/her staff by
doing the following:

striving to procure, when a vacancy exists, the best professional leader available for the head
administrative post

giving the superintendent full administrative authority for properly discharging his/her professional duties
and holding him/her responsible for acceptable results

acting only upon the recommendation of the superintendent in matters of employment or dismissal of
school personnel

having the superintendent present at all meetings of the board except when his/her contract and salary are
under consideration

referring all complaints to the superintendent and discussing them only at a regular meeting if a failure to
arrive at an administrative solution occurs

striving to provide adequate safeguards around the superintendent and other staff members to the end that
they can live happily and comfortably in the community and discharge their educational functions on a
thoroughly professional basis

https:/boardpolicyonline.com/?b=1ex5

12



4120122, 5:44 PM Document
» presenting personal criticisms of any employee directly to the superintendent

Adopted 2/24/69; Revised 1/9/06

Legal references;
School board members are under the jurisdiction of the " Ethics, Government Accountability and
Campaign Reform Act," Section 8-13-100, et seq., S.C. Code, and are subject to rules of conduct of the
statute.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

https://boardpolicyenline.com/?b=lex5 2/2



Policy
DISCUSSION AND FIRST READING OF PROPOSED REVISIONS — APRIL 25, 2022
BCA — BOARD MEMBER CODE OF ETHICS

Issued 1/06

Purpose: The Board and its members will conduct themselves lawfully with integrity and high ethical
standards in order to model the behaviors expected of staff and students and to build public
confidence and credibility. To-establish-the-basic-structurefor-ethical-board-conduct-—Thepublic

represents-a-challengingrespensibility: This code of ethics is adopted by the board as a guide to its
members as they strive to render effective and efficient service to their community.

A board member should honor the critical responsibilities that his/her membership demands by doing
the following:

e thinking always in terms of "children first"

e understanding that the basic function of a school board is policymaking, not administration, and
by accepting the responsibility of learning to discriminate intelligently between these two
functions

e accepting the responsibility along with his/her fellow board members of ensuring that optimal
facilities and resources are provided for the proper functioning of schools

e refusing to play politics in either the traditional partisan or any petty sense

e representing, at all times, the entire school district

e accepting the responsibility of becoming well informed concerning the duties of board members
and the proper functions of public schools

e recognizing responsibility as a state official to seek the improvement of education throughout
the state

A board member should respect his/her relationships with other members of the board by doing the
following:

e recognizing that authority rests only with the board in official meetings and that the individual
member has no legal status to bind the board outside of such meetings

e recognizing the integrity of his/her predecessors and associates and the merit of their work

e refusing to make statements or promises as to how he/she will vote on any matter in which the
board is presiding in a quasi-judicial capacity and in which the matter should properly come
before the hoard as a whole

e making decisions only after all facts bearing on a question have been presented and discussed

e respecting the opinion of others and graciously conforming to the principle of majority rule

e refusing to participate in irregular meetings such as secret or "star chamber" meetings which are
not official and which all members do not have the opportunity to attend

e maintaining the confidentiality of matters discussed in executive session

A board member should maintain desirable relations with the superintendent of schools and his/her
staff by doing the following:

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



e striving to procure, when a vacancy exists, the best professional leader available for the head
administrative post

* giving the superintendent full administrative authority for properly discharging his/her
professional duties and holding him/her responsible for acceptable results

¢ acting only upon the recommendation of the superintendent in matters of employment or
dismissal of school personnel

¢ having the superintendent or his designee present at all meetings of the board except when
his/her contract and salary are under consideration

s referring all complaints to the superintendent and discussing them only at a regular meeting if a
failure to arrive at an administrative solution occurs

e striving to provide adequate safeguards around the superintendent and other staff members to
the end that they can live happily and comfortably in the community and discharge their
educational functions on a thoroughly professional basis

e presenting personal criticisms of any employee directly to the superintendent

Adopted 2/24/69; Revised 1/9/06
Legal references:

School board members are under the jurisdiction of the " Ethics, Government Accountability and
Campaign Reform Act,” Section 8-13-100, et seq., 5.C. Code, and are subject to rules of conduct
of the statute,

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



, EXHIBIT 1
Policy

DISCUSSION AND FIRST READING OF PROPOSED NEW BOARD POLICY — APRIL 25, 2022
(Suggested Updates From Attorney Riser)
Policy FGG Facility Construction Project Administration

Issued: 4/2022

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for use of Change Orders as well as Contingency Allowances

included in Previeusly-Appreved-contractsfor school construction contracts after the effective date of
this Policy.

The district reserves the right to smsay make changes in the scope of the work required to be performed
by the a contractor by smaking seeking additions or omissions which may be detailed in proposed
change orders or the use of contingency allowances. The purpose of such proposed change orders or
contingency allowance application initiated by the district would not seek to invalidate witheut
invalidating-the contract, witheutrelieving-erreleasing would not seek to relieve or release the
contractor from any of his its obligations under the contract or any guarantee given by-hisa it pursuant
to the contract provisions. Furthermore, any proposed change orders or contingency allowance
applications initiated by the district would not seek to affect witheut-affecting the validity of the
guaranty bonds, and-witheut-relieving-erreleasing nor would they seek to relieve or release any-the
surety or sureties of the bonds. All such work shall be executed under the items of the original contract
unless expressly provided otherwise.

In the event of conflict between this Policy and the procedure for handling of Change Orders or
Contingency Allowances in District construction contracts the procedure identified in the contracts
shall govern.

If applicable unit prices are not contained in the agreement, the architect shall, before ordering the
contractor to proceed with desired changes, request an itemized proposal covering the work involved in
the change or use of contingency allowance funds, after which the procedure shall be as follows:

If the Change Order proposal is acceptable, the architect or other personnel or representative of the
district for the project shall prepare the Change Order for acceptance by the contractor. If the proposal
for use of contingency allowance funds included in a previously approved contract is acceptable, the
architect shall prepare a statement to be submitted to the board. For Change Orders to be accepted the
owner, architect, and contractor must all agree.

Each Change Order or Request for Use of Contingency Allowance Funds shall include in its final form:
a. A detailed description of the change in the work,
b. The contractor's proposal (if any) or a conformed copy,
c. A definitive statement as to the resulting change in the contract price and/or time; and,

d. The statement that all work involved in the change or request shall be performed in accordance
with contract requirements except as modified by the change order.

No extra work for which will result in a change order shall be done nor any obligation incurred for
payment except upon a wrltten order fully signed by the owner's representative and-the-Officeof

: dueatien. No extra work for which will result
ina request for use of contmgency aIIowance funds shall be done nor any obligation incurred for
payment except upon a written order fully sighed by the owner's representative. Information on such
Change Orders or Requests for Use of Contingency Funds will be provided to the board at the next
regular board meeting. Any Change Order or Request for Use of Contingency Funds exceeding $50,000
or enlarging the scope requires board approval before the order is placed.




4, |n order to limit excessive usage of contingency, the administration will follow the project checklist,
research similar project contingencies, then present a conservative proposal fo encompass the scope of
work to the board before approval of each use of contingency. In any case, regardless of the use of the
§50,000 limit for either change orders or contingency funds, the administration shall report such usage
in any amount to the board on a quarterly basis.

Adopted 4/X/2022
School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



4/20/22, 5:44 PM CURRENT POLICY

Policy FEC Selection of Professionals in Facilities Construction EXHIBIT J

Issued 9/21

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for the selection of professionals by the district.

The board believes it is appropriate and necessary to secure the services of professionals in the area of facilities
construction to manage and supervise the construction of new schools and additions and renovations to existing
schools. This helps assure the district maintains adequate facilities to support excellence in education.

1. Members of the board of trustees be barred from voting or ad Hoc membership on professional selection
committees;

2. Candidates for voting or ad hoc membership of the selection committees be vetted to determine apparent
or actual conflicts of interest and conflicts of interest are determined, that candidates must withdraw their
name from consideration;

3. Voting or ad hoc members of selection committees be required to sign and adhere to the districts’
confidentially and conflict of interest policy.

The board will begin the selection process by instructing the administration to establish a selection committee,
The administration will do the following:

Identify committee members (typically three to five members).
+ Identify a committee chairman.

Establish a selection timeline.

Identify the project(s} for inclusion in building program.
Develop a description for the proposed project(s).

The committee will make a recommendation based on the proposed project to the administration regarding the
needed qualifications for the required professional(s). The administration will develop an RFQ (Request for
Qualifications), to include the following:

e purpose of the request

+ request for information regarding professional(s), experience, proposed services, proposed staffing,
resumes and references

o description of proposed project(s)

+ other desired information as appropriate

The committee will evaluate the RFQs received by the administration. Their evaluation should include the
following:

» establishment of the selection criteria and an appropriate ranking system
 review and ranking of submitted proposals
» establish of the “short list” of professionals for interview (typically no more than five)

The committee will interview the *short list” of professionals and upon completion of the interviews, the
committee will do the following:

+ Review and rank interviewed professional(s).

» Prepare written notification of the results (to “short list” of professionals - minimum of 10 days notice is
recommended).

» Select professional(s) to be recommended.

The committee will submit its recommendation to the administration, who will begin contract negotiations with
the selected professional(s). The administration will submit its recommendation and proposed contract to the
board. /

https:ffboardpolicyonline.com/?b=lex5 112



4/20/22, 5:44 PM Document
The board will consider the recommendation and contract and approve as appropriate.

Adopted 5/19/03; Revised 2/24/14, 9/27/21
Legal References:
S.C. Code of Laws, 1976, as amended:
Section 59-23-210 - Construction, improvement, and renovation of public schools; compliance with
the South Carolina School Facilities Planning and Construction Guide; committee members;

submission of plans.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

https:/fboardpolicyonline.com/?b=lex5 2/2



Policy
DISCUSSION AND FIRST READING OF PROPSED REVISIONS — APRIL 25, 2022
Policy FEC Selection of Professionals in Facilities Construction

Issued 9/21 (Proposed Changes - March Policy Committee Meeting)

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for the selection of professionals by the district.

The board believes it is appropriate and necessary to secure the services of professionals in the area of facilities
construction to manage and supervise the construction of new schools and additions and renovations to existing
schools. This helps assure the district maintains adequate facilities to support excellence in education.

1. Members of the board of trustees be barred from voting or ad Hoc membership on professional selection
committees;

2. Candidates for voting or ad hoc membership of the selection committees be vetted to determine apparent or
actual conflicts of interest and conflicts of interest are determined, that candidates must withdraw their name
from consideration;

3. Voting or ad hoc members of selection committees be required to sign and adhere to the districts’ confidentially
and conflict of interest policy.

The board will begin the selection process by instructing the administration to establish a selection committee. The
administration will do the following:

Identify committee members (typically three to five members).
Identify a committee chairman.

Establish a selection timeline.

Identify the project(s) for inclusion in building program.
Develop a description for the proposed project(s).

The committee will make a recommendation based on the proposed project to the administration regarding the needed
qualifications for the required professional(s). The administration will develop an RFQ (Request for Qualifications), to
include the following:

purpose of the request
request for information regarding professional(s), experience, proposed services, proposed staffing, resumes
and references
e description of proposed project(s)
other desired information as appropriate

The committee will evaluate the RFQs received by the administration. Their evaluation should include the following:

e establishment of the selection criteria and an appropriate ranking system
e review and ranking of submitted proposals
e establish of the “short list” of professionals for interview (typically no more than five)

The committee will interview the “short list” of professionals and upon completion of the interviews, the committee will
do the following:

e Review and rank interviewed professional(s).

e Prepare written notification of the results (to “short list” of professionals - minimum of 10 days notice is
recommended).

e Select professional(s) to be recommended.

The committee will submit its recommendation to the administration, who will begin contract negotiations with the
selected professional(s). The administration will submit its recommendation and proposed contract to the board.
Proposed addition to policy (March Committee Mtg):

While a contingency written into an original contract may not be one size fits all, in order to limit excessive
contingency, the administration will create a project checklist, research similar project contingencies, then present a
conservative contingency allowance to encompass the scope of work in the contract to the board before approval of
the final contract. The final contract should include the presented contingency allowance along with a designation of
the ownership of any contingency balance at the end of the contract.




The board will consider the recommendation and contract and approve as appropriate,
Adopted 5/19/03; Revised 2/24/14,9/27/21

Legal References:

S.C. Code of Laws, 1976, as amended:

Section 59-23-210 - Construction, improvement, and renovation of public schools; compliance with the South Carolina
School Facilities Planning and Construction Guide; committee members; submission of plans.



4/20/22, 5:44 PM CURRENT POLICY
Policy BDG School Attorney/Legal Services EXHIBIT K
Issued 4/06
Purpose: To establish the basic structure for the board's need for and relationship with its attorney.

The increasing complexity of school board operations requires the frequent procurement of legal services.
Consequently, the board, by majority vote, may designate attorneys to counsel the board and administration on
legal matters involving the district's welfare.

The attorney will serve at the pleasure of the board and will be paid for services rendered.

The board may ask the attorney to attend such board meetings or other meetings as may be needed. A decision to
seek legal advice or assistance on behalf of the school system may be made by the superintendent or the board.
Such action will be taken as consistent with board policy and as it meets an obvious need of the board. It may
take place as a consequence of formal board direction.

Except in unusual circumstances, the board will make all communications to the school attorney through the
superintendent or board chairman.

Adopted 11/16/81; Revised 4/24/06

School District Five of Lexingtori and Richland Counties

https://beardpolicyonline.com/?b=lex5 1M



Policy
SCSBA Model Policy (Committee Recommendations from 3/16/22)
SCHOOL BOARD ATTORNEY/LEGAL SERVICES

Code BDG /ssued DRAFT/19 84/06

Independent Counsel

The-inereasing complexity of-sehoel board operations requires the frequent procurement of legal
services. Consequently, the board, by majority vote, may designate an attorneys or law firms to
counsel the board and administration on legal matters involving the district’s welfare. The board
retains the right to counsel with or employ other attorneys and to terminate the service of any

attorney.

The board may ask the attorney to attend sueh board meetings or other meetings as may be needed.

The district will only pay for legal services that are provided in accordance with the board-
approved representation agreement or are otherwise authorized by board policy. Exeeptinunusual

Adopted 11/16/81; Revised 4/24/06, *

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



420122, 5:44 PM CURRENT POLICY
AR BDG-R School Attorney/Legal Services EXHIBIT L
Issued 4/06

The board may retain attorneys for the purpose of systematically securing legal services in a timely and
organized manner. The following administrative rule sets forth the board's expectations for its legal services. It
also serves as a job description for the attorneys.

Qualifications
Attorneys will be licensed to practice law in South Carolina.

- Attorneys will be sufficiently familiar with requirements of school laws of the state to enable them to offer the
necessary advice. '

Attorneys will possess any additional qualifications as the board finds appropriate.
Reports To

Board attorneys' briefings to the board are coordinated by the superintendent, except in unusual circumstances
such as personnel matters pertaining to the superintendent. In those instances, the attorneys will report directly to
the board. Those briefings will be to the full board, coordinated by the board chairman. The board chairman is
the only member of the board authorized to provide direction to the attorneys on behalf of the board.

Appointment

The board will appoint attorneys to advise and represent the district. Attorneys will be the chief legal adviser and
representative of the board and will serve at the will of the board.

Evaluation
The board and superintendent will annually evaluate the performance of the attorneys.
Compensation

Compensation for legal services will be negotiated with the board at the time an attorney is appointed or within
30 days of the appointment. The finalization of an appointment is subject to a compensation agreement between
the board and the attorney.

Services

A decision to seek legal advice and assistance on behalf of the district may be made by the board or the
superintendent. Other district employees will seek legal services through the superintendent. Employees will
make such request consistent within standard procedures.

The board and administration will make all requests for legal services, including routine information and
assistance, in a timely and organized manner and in accordance with board policy. The attorney will provide the
board with periodic legal briefings and a status report on all requests for assistance that have not been provided
or completed within 30 days of the request. The attorney will give the board a monthly status report on all
litigation or potential litigation involving the district.

Issued 4/24/06

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

hitps://boardpolicyonline.com/?b=lex5 M



Administrative Rule
SCSBA Model Policy (with more committee recommendations from 3/16/22)
SCHOOL-BOARD ATTORNEY/LEGAL SERVICES

Code BDG-R Issued DRAFT/1904/06

The board may retain an attorneys or law firm for the purpose of systematically securing legal
services in a timely and organized manner. The following administrative rule sets forth the
board’s expectations for its legal services. It also serves as a job description for the attorneys or
firm.

Qualifications

The board will select an attorneys or law firms based on qualifications submitted from interested
firms.

o The Aattorney will be licensed to practice law in South Carolina.

o The Aattorneys will be sufficiently familiar with reguirements-of school laws-ef-the-state
to enable them him/her to offer the-neeessary legal advice.

o The Aattorneys-will possess any additional qualifications as the board finds appropriate.
Selection

The administration will create a list of attorneys for use by the board and the administration by
Request for Proposal. Any additions to the list will require an RFP. A schedule of fees for each
attorney will be presented to the board. The board will evaluate and approve the list annually at a
minimum.

The board will select a general board counsel by vote. The general counsel will select specialized
attorneys as needed from the list of approved attorneys with the approval of the board or
superintendent. The administration will recommend administrative general counsel to the board
for approval.

Reports Tto

he Sierte 3 e-and-repre he-d . Aattorneys-will be the chief
legal adv1ser and representatlve of the board and will serve at the will of the board, reporting
directly to the board.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties  (see next page)



PAGE 2 - BDG-R - BOARD SCHOOL ATTORNEY/LEGAL
SERVICES

Evaluation
The board and superintendent will annually evaluate the performance of the attorneys.
Compensation

Compensation for legal services will be negotiated with the board at the time an attorney is
appointed or within thirty (30) days of the appointment. The finalization of an appointment is
subject to a compensation agreement between the board and the attorney.

Services

The board and administration will make all requests for legal services, including routine
information and assistance, in a timely and organized manner and in accordance with board
policy. The attorney will provide the board with periodic legal briefings and a status report on all
requests for assistance that have not been provided or completed within thirty (30) days of the
request. The attorney will give the board a menthly-quarterly status report er-mere-often as
needed when necessary on all litigation or potential litigation involving the distriet-board.
Lawsuits involving the school district that-de-net-have-the-board-listed-as-alitigant-will-only may
be brought to the board if the administration deems it appropriate or at a board majority’s
request. Other than matters handled by the South Carolina School Boards Insurance Trust
(SCSBIT) or other applicable insurance, no litigation will be initiated or dismissed by the district
without board approval and no settlement offer will be made without board approval.

Board legal services

Many instances of legal assistance provided to the board may be considered routine and not
necessitating specific board approval or prior vote. The board ehair officers by consensus may
initiate inquiries on these routine matters at his/her their discretion. No legal inquiry or action
will be taken against any board member without the approval of the board.

The board will initiate inquiries on matters such as the following:

o Board meeting procedures
e School district investigations or grievances
e Board Policy rulings and/or changes

The Superintendent is responsible for initiating the use of attorneys for various administrative
actions:

e Special Education services
e Student services
e Human Resources

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



PAGE 3 - BDG-R - BOARD SCHOOL ATTORNEY/LEGAL
SERVICES

o Construction and operational guidance

o Financial issues

o Media Relations

o Adherence to Board Policy & Procedures

All requests for formal legal opinions from the district’s legal counsel regarding board issues will
be directed through the board chair or the superintendent. A board member wishing to obtain a
legal opinion will bring such request to the full board. A majority vote will be obtained to initiate
a request for a legal opinion. Any opinion provided will be disseminated to the full board.

Board members with personal legal questions should seek advice from their own private
attorneys. It will be seen as a breach of trust and ethically inappropriate for any board member to
obtain legal counsel from an attorney or law firm who is being currently used by the school
district or the board of trustees as a whole in a personal matter or when the board member is
acting as an independent member of the board.

Issued 4/24/06; Revised

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



EXHIBIT M

0, \
V& picp ™

MEMORANDUM

TO: Members of the Board of Trustees

THROUGH: Dr. Akil E. Ross, Sr.
Superintendent

FROM: Dr. Michael R. Harris

DATE: April 21, 2022

RE: April 25, 2022 Board Meeting
School District 10-Year Demographics

Attached are excerpts of a 10-Year demographic study for School District Five

presented by Milone and McBroom, Inc. during the July 13, 2020 regularly scheduled
Board Meeting.

MRH
Attachment

www.lexrichb.org
1020 Dutch Fork Road « Irmo, South Carolina 29063 « (803) 476-8000
“Pursuing Excellence for Tomorrow's Challenges”



Districtwide Projections (PK-12)

Actual and Projected PK-12 Enrollment: 2012-13 to 2029-30
,000 18,791

3,500

17.804 17.859 17,881 17.922 4765 17.936 17,953 17,949 17,929
17432 17.505 17f6_5_ ________________________________
’ “’—

7,500 17,244
! 17,088
; 16,926
,000 16,637 16749
16,452 16,897
5,500

»,000

3,000

»,500

»,000

N N N "o Q0 N N D " s » > » ° ™ i 0 %X

(U f))l N O)/ b’ «I %I q’ Q’ h\’ ,-v ,bo‘ h’ %I bl «J % Q
N X N 5 ™ o ™ o v 3% v 3 v % v % % v
I N R R O A S U S LR
Low == === Medium High e Historic

= Medium model projects enroliment increasing by about 2.4% over the next
five years before stabilizing at about 17,900 students

= Low model projects a 3.5% decrease through 2029-30
= High model projects a 7.3% increase through 2029-30

/\ MILONE & 5
4% MACBROOM



Elementary School Projections (PK-5)

Medium PK-5 Enrollment Projections, by Year Projected Change
School 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 | 2023-24 | 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 5-Year 10-Year
Ballentine Elementaryl 675 708 728 737 733 745 729 723 720 719 725 |& 10.4% & 7.4%
Chapin Elementary 855 908 920 942 921 926 920 913 912 922 919 |& 8.3% & 7.5%
Chapin Intermediate (5th Grade Portion only) 370 390 437 385 445 424 447 431 423 407 429 |& 14.6% A 15.9%
Dutch Fork Elementary Academy of Environmental Sciences*| 528 528 526 524 507 490 504 498 497 497 501 ¥ -7.2% W -5.1%
H. E. Corley Leadership Magnet & Montessori Magnet 628 611 626 612 629 628 613 609 605 606 610 |= 0.0% = -2.9%
Harbison West Elementary (including Escolares Academy) 616 612 600 612 594 612 607 603 603 602 605 |== -0.6% = -1.8%
Irmo Elementary 579 602 615 648 663 667 664 657 656 655 660 |4 15.2% & 14.0%
Lake Murray Elem&ntary1 924 922 895 899 885 885 876 874 873 878 875 |V -4.2% W -5.3%
Leaphart Elementary STEAM Magnet 480 496 515 510 505 510 518 514 514 513 517 |& 6.3% & 7.7%
Nursery Road Elementary 460 484 480 486 469 468 484 478 476 476 479 |= 1.7% & 4.1%
Oak Pointe Elementary 579 538 504 481 465 478 478 476 474 474 477 |W¥ -17.4% (W -17.6%
River Springs Elementary * 517 516 514 513 501 499 504 500 496 497 499 |W -3.5% WV -3.5%
Seven Oaks Elementary Media Magnet 545 523 503 488 474 465 476 471 471 470 473 |W -147% W -13.2%

7,756 7,838 7,863 7,837 | 7,791 | 7,797 7,820 7,747 1,720 7,716 | 7,769

I. Assumes continuation of enroliment freeze at LMES and CES - students sent to RSES, DFES, and BES

\ssumes stable Pre-K enrollment at 514 students

ource: MMI Medium Projections

= Continuation of enroliment freeze curtails projected growth at LMES.
= Fastest growth at CIS (15.9%), IES (14.0%), LES (7.7%), and CES (7.5%).
» Greatest decrease at OPES (-17.6%) and SOES (-13.2%).

/I\ MILONE &
¢ MACBROOM



Middle & Intermediate School Projections

Medium Enrollment Projections, by Year Projected Change
School 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 5-Year 10-Year
Chapin Intermediate (6th Grade Portion only) 425 421 441 492 443 499 483 507 488 480 461 |& 17.4% & 8.5%
Chapin Middle 1,010 980 915 927 1,003 | 1,007 | 1,013 | 1,058 | 1,064 | 1,070 | 1,042 |== -0.3% A 3.2%
CrossRoads Intermediate 723 786 781 760 789 736 734 789 759 745 718 = 1.8% = -0.7%
Dutch Fork Middle 1,011 980 972 1,004 988 993 978 942 977 993 964 |/ -1.8% WV -4.6%
Irmo Middle International Academic Magnet - iAM 1,015 1,023 991 1,016 1,005 1,008 995 975 998 1,009 979 |= -0.7% W -3.5%

4,580 | 4,537 4,673 4,667

Source: MMI Medium Projections

= Fastest growth at CIS (8.5%) and CMS (3.2%).
= Stable enroliment at CRIS (-0.7%)
= Small declines at IMS (-3.5%) and DFMS (-4.6%).

/I\ MILONE & s
4V MACBROOM



High School Projections

Medium Enrollment Projections, by Year Projected Change

School 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30  5-Year 10-Year

Chapin High 1,487 | 1,575 | 1,645 | 1,642 | 1,670 | 1656 | 1,673 | 1,686 | 1,758 | 1,794 | 1,809 |& 11.4% |& 21.7%

Dutch Fork High (including STEM

orogram) 1692 | 1,625 | 1,624 | 1555 | 1,528 | 1,531 | 1,516 | 1,543 | 1,516 | 1,491 | 1,509 |[W-95% [W-10.8%

Irmo High International School of the

. 1,261 1,318 1,432 1,489 1,526 1,552 1,519 1,541 1,521 1,501 1,515 |4 23.1% [ 20.1%
Arts (includes IB)

Spring Hill High Career Pathways
Magnet

1,125 | 1,119 | 1,140 | 1,137 | 1,138 | 1,143 | 1,134 | 1,148 | 1,152 | 1,150 | 1,163 |== 1.6% |& 3.4%

5,996 5.7%

ource: MMI Medium Projections

= Fastest growth projected at CHS (21.7%)

= |HS also projected to see significant growth of 20.1% - includes buildout of
Dual Enrollment program at about 90 students.

= Modest growth at SHHS (3.4% growth)

= DFHS projected to decrease by 10.8% as smaller elementary classes
matriculate up into the high school

———————

/I\ MILONE &
¢\ MACBROOM



Takeaways

= Stable enrollments at the elementary school level over the next ten years.

= Some individual schools are expected to experience modest growth
while others will see modest declines.

» Enrollment targets are exceeded or approached at LMES, CES, IES, and
BES. Underscores the need to look af redistricting districtwide.

= Stable enrollment at the intermediate & middle school level over the next
ten years.

= Buildings will be efficiently used over the next ten years
= Moderate growth at the high school level projected over the next ten years

= Fastest growth at CHS — projected to exceed optimal utilization range
for each of the next ten years

/J\ MILONE &
¢\ MACBROOM



	4-25-2022 Amended
	4-25-2022 Board Packet
	1. Agenda 4-25-2022
	2. Minutes 3-28-2022
	04212022154114-0001
	04212022154144-0001
	04212022154218-0001
	04212022154237-0001

	5. Exhibit D
	7. Exhibit E
	8. Exhibit F
	9. Exhibit G
	10. Exhibit H
	11. Exhibit I
	12. Exhibit J
	13.Exhibit K
	14. Exhibit L
	15. Exhibit M


